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PRESIDENT’S REPORT 2024/2025 
 
This season was a special one for the club with no less than 6 junior and senior premierships. With 
the lights on the Blackman Park nets enabling players to train at night, all members were able to 
benefit fully from the infrastructure upgrade. 
 
I would like to thank the committee for their contribution to prepare for the season well in advance 
by recruiting 3 overseas imports who would come to make significant contributions to the club, 
playing and coaching. 
 
For the 1st time in 17 seasons, the club managed to qualify for the Under 24s semi-finals and 
proceeded to claim the Frank Gray Trophy at Weldon on a Sunday afternoon in February 2025, 
defending 260 off their 50 overs. 
 
Our First-Grade limited overs team also won the Limited Overs premiership, our 1st in only the 2nd 
season of the competition. Chasing 210, we cruised to victory on the batting of skipper Michael 
Bryant. 
 
Thank you to our sponsors: Belle Property Lane Cove, Kingston Financial, LBD Landscaping and 
Kingsgrove Sports. 
 
A special mention must go to Andrew Bray who took over as the Vice President - Seniors and ran 
the seniors with a no fuss, can do attitude. His phone calls and wisdom greatly assisted the running 
of the club at various stage during the season. 
 
The Juniors under new Vice President - Juniors Bevan Guest increased junior numbers to 290 
players last season and 35 Junior Blasters. Along with the great participation numbers, the Juniors 
had great results, including winning 4 premierships: 2 Under 10 Boys’ and 2 Girls’. 
 
Plans are well underway for 2025/2026 season with the hope that more Seniors will want to play 
which will reduce the cost of the Senior subscription fees. 
 
As our Treasurer Paul Bakker will note, we have spent approximately $100,000 on Council fees in 
the last season, something we will look to reduce over the coming season. 
 
We as a club need to unite or die, as it becomes progressively harder each year to run a cricket club. 
 
Finally, thank you to Lane Cove Council for all the work on grounds last season. With new covers 
at Tantallon and a new small cover at KSO, we look forward to improved pitches in the upcoming 
season. 
 
Go Covies 
 
Brendan Hood 
President 
 
  



TREASURER’S REPORT 2024/2025 
 
Membership and Participation 
 
After a few years of stagnation, we were pleased to see a further increase in player subscriptions.  
Junior subscriptions, while slightly below their historical peak, remain solid. Encouragingly, the 
Club continues to see growth in junior boys’ and girls’ cricket, reinforcing our strategic focus on 
inclusivity and future development. 
 
Team numbers across both Senior and Junior levels remain consistent. Player numbers will remain 
a critical factor in preserving the Club’s financial sustainability. 
 
Financial Results 
 
For the year ended 30 April 2025, the Club reported a net loss of $31,010, after factoring in 
operational results and other income including donations and grants. 
 
Key figures include: 
 

• Total revenue: $178,302 (↑ from $149,446 in 2024) 
 

Major expense areas: 
 

• Ground hire: $97,773 (↑ from $42,540) 
• Equipment and balls: $32,139 
• Registration fees (including NSJCA): $37,296 

 
The Club also recognised a $26,711 prior-year ground hire adjustment, which has impacted on the 
reported result. 
 
Despite the reported deficit, the Club continues to maintain a solid cash reserve of $92,329 and total 
net assets of $79,060. These figures reflect prudent historical management and give us confidence 
in navigating future pressures. 
 
Outlook and Risk Management 
 
Looking ahead, the Club faces a range of significantly increased expenses that must be carefully 
managed in the years to come. The most material of these are: 
 

• Ground hire, which has already more than doubled over the past few years, and is 
expected to rise further. 
 

• Player registration and NSJCA fees, which continue to trend upward, and are also 
expected to increase by 10% for the 2025/26 year. 

 
• The potential future introduction or escalation of umpire costs, particularly as Cricket 

NSW has indicated it will no longer cover these costs despite a significant increase in 
the registration fees paid by players to Cricket Australia who contribute funding to 
Cricket NSW. 



 
These expenses represent structural challenges that could place pressure on the Club’s financial 
model.  
 
The Committee is actively reviewing all cost drivers to ensure that any increases are matched with 
thoughtful planning. While we remain committed to keeping cricket affordable and accessible, 
player subscription levels may need to be reassessed for 2025/26 and beyond if these costs cannot 
be absorbed through other efficiencies or increased external funding.  
 
Despite these challenges, the Committee proposes to maintain Senior Registration fees at $700 and 
Junior Registration fees at $425 (excluding the Cricket Australia fee). 
 
Maintaining healthy registration numbers and securing ongoing support from sponsors and donors 
will be essential in offsetting these financial headwinds. 
 
Investment in the Future 
 
It has been heartening to welcome new players to the sport and the Club. The importance of 
investing in our junior teams cannot be overstated — they are the future of the Lane Cove Cricket 
Club. Programs that support their growth and enjoyment will remain a key focus in the years ahead.  
A big thank you to those players who assisted in Junior coaching throughout the year. 
 
Acknowledgements 
 
On behalf of the Committee, I extend our sincere gratitude to all our sponsors, donors, volunteers, 
and supporters. Your continued commitment is vital to our success. 
 
Thank you also to our captains, coaches, junior reps, parents, and players who help make Lane 
Cove Cricket Club a respected and thriving part of the Sydney cricket community. 
 
Conclusion 
 
Despite rising costs, Lane Cove Cricket Club is well positioned. With sound governance, a growing 
player base, and dedicated community support, we remain confident in the Club’s direction and its 
long-term future. 
 
  
Paul Bakker 
 
Paul Bakker 
Honorary Treasurer 
 



Lane Cove Cricket Club Incorporated   
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income   
For the year ended 30 April 2025   

 

 
  Note  2025  2024 
    $  $ 
       

The above statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income should be read in 
conjunction with the accompanying notes 

1 

Revenue    178,302  149,446  
  
Expenses       
       
Clothing & Merchandise    -  - 
Depreciation expense    -  - 
Equipment & Balls    (32,139)  (20,793) 
Ground Fees    (97,773)  (42,540) 
Registration Fees    (37,296)  (30,783) 
Trophies    (5,117)  (3,458) 
Other    (41,068)  (39,990) 
  
Surplus/(Deficit) before income tax expense    (35,081)  11,822 
  
Income tax expense    -  -  
  
Surplus after income tax expense for the year attributable 
to the members of the Lane Cove Cricket Club 
Incorporated 

 

 

 

(35,081) 

 

11,822 
  

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax    5,076  12,510  
Donations to Lane Cove Council (Contribution Tantallon Oval)    995  - 
  
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to the 
members of the Lane Cove Cricket Club Incorporated 

 
 

 
(31,010) 

 
24,332 

  



Lane Cove Cricket Club Incorporated   
Statement of financial position   
As at 30 April 2025   

 

 
  Note  2025  2024 
    $  $ 
       

The above statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying 
notes 

2 

Assets       
       
Current assets       
Cash and cash equivalents    92,329  129,954 
Trade and other receivables    2,026  1,360 
Stock    12,350  10,934 
Total current assets    106,705  142,248 
       
Non-current assets       
Property, plant and equipment    84,319  84,319 
Accumulated Depreciation    (60,168)  (60,168) 
Total non-current assets    24,151  24,151 
       
Total assets    130,856  166,399 
       
  

Liabilities       
       
Current liabilities       
Trade and other payables    51,796  29,618 
Total current liabilities    51,796  29,618 
       
Total liabilities    51,796  29,618 
       
  
Net assets    79,060  136,781 
  

Equity       
Opening Retained surpluses    136,781  112,449 
Profit/(Loss)    (31,010)  24,332 
Prior Year Adjustment (Ground Hire)    (26,711)   
       
Total equity    79,060  136,781 
  



Lane Cove Cricket Club Incorporated   
Statement of changes in equity   
For the year ended 30 April 2025   

 

  

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying 
notes 

3 

  Retained  
  surpluses  
  $  
    
Balance at 1 May 2024  136,781  
    
Surplus/(Deficit) after income tax expense for the year  (35,081)  
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax  4,081  
    
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year  (31,010)  
    
Balance at 30 April 2025  79,060  
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Lane Cove Cricket Club Incorporated   
Notes to the financial statements   
30 April 2025   

 

  

  
4 

Note 1. Significant accounting policies 
  
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. These 
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 
  
New, revised or amending Accounting Standards and Interpretations adopted 
The incorporated association has adopted all of the new, revised or amending Accounting Standards and 
Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board ('AASB') that are mandatory for the current 
reporting period. 
  
Any new, revised or amending Accounting Standards or Interpretations that are not yet mandatory have not been 
early adopted. 
  
Basis of preparation 
In the officers' opinion, the incorporated association is not a reporting entity because there are no users dependent 
on general purpose financial statements. 
  
These are special purpose financial statements that have been prepared for the purposes of complying with the 
New South Wales legislation the Associations Incorporation Act 2009, the Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 and 
associated regulations. The officers have determined that the accounting policies adopted are appropriate to meet 
the needs of the members of the Lane Cove Cricket Club Inc. 
  
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement 
requirements specified by the Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian 
Accounting Standards Board ('AASB') and the disclosure requirements of AASB 101 'Presentation of Financial 
Statements', AASB 107 'Statement of Cash Flows', AASB 108 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting 
Estimates and Errors', AASB 1031 'Materiality', AASB 1048 'Interpretation of Standards' and AASB 1054 
'Australian Additional Disclosures', as appropriate for not-for-profit oriented entities. 
  
Revenue recognition 
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the incorporated association and 
the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or 
receivable. 
  
Sales revenue 
Events, fundraising and raffles are recognised when received or receivable. 
  
Donations 
Donations are recognised at the time the pledge is made. 
  
Grants 
Grants are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, 
and all attached conditions will be complied with. 
  
Interest 
Interest revenue is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest method. This is a method of 
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant period using 
the effective interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the 
expected life of the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. 
  
Other revenue 
Other revenue is recognised when it is received or when the right to receive payment is established. 
  
Income tax 
As the incorporated association is a charitable institution in terms of subsection 50-5 of the Income Tax 
Assessment Act 1997, as amended, it is exempt from paying income tax. 
  



Lane Cove Cricket Club Incorporated   
Notes to the financial statements   
30 April 2025   

 

  
Note 1. Significant accounting policies (continued) 
  

  
5 

Current and non-current classification 
Assets and liabilities are presented in the statement of financial position based on current and non-current 
classification. 
  
An asset is current when: it is expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating 
cycle; it is held primarily for the purpose of trading; it is expected to be realised within twelve months after the 
reporting period; or the asset is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle 
a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. All other assets are classified as non-current. 
  
A liability is current when: it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle; it is held primarily for the purpose 
of trading; it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or there is no unconditional right 
to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. All other liabilities are 
classified as non-current.  
  
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are always classified as non-current. 
  
Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-
term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known 
amounts of cash, and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 
  
Trade and other receivables 
Other receivables are recognised at amortised cost, less any provision for impairment. 
  
Property, plant and equipment 
Plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Historical cost 
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. 
  
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to write off the net cost of each item of property, plant and 
equipment (excluding land) over their expected useful lives as follows: 
  
Buildings  40 years 
Freehold improvements  15 years 
Plant and equipment  3-7 years 
Motor vehicles  5-7 years 
Office equipment  3-5 years 
  
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each 
reporting date. 
  
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when there is no future economic 
benefit to the incorporated association. Gains and losses between the carrying amount and the disposal proceeds 
are taken to profit or loss. 
  
Impairment of non-financial assets 
Non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's 
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. 
  
Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-use. The value-in-
use is the present value of the estimated future cash flows relating to the asset using a pre-tax discount rate 
specific to the asset or cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Assets that do not have independent 
cash flows are grouped together to form a cash-generating unit. 
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30 April 2025   

 

  
Note 1. Significant accounting policies (continued) 
  

  
6 

Trade and other payables 
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the incorporated association prior to the 
end of the financial year and which are unpaid. Due to their short-term nature they are measured at amortised 
cost and are not discounted. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. 
  

Fair value measurement 
When an asset or liability, financial or non-financial, is measured at fair value for recognition or disclosure 
purposes, the fair value is based on the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability 
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date; and assumes that the transaction 
will take place either: in the principle market; or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous 
market. 
  
Fair value is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, 
assuming they act in their economic best interest. For non-financial assets, the fair value measurement is based 
on its highest and best use. Valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient 
data are available to measure fair value, are used, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and 
minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 
  
 



 

 

Independent auditor’s report to the members of The Lane Cove 
Cricket Club Inc. 

 
Report on the financial report 

 
I have audited the accompanying financial report, being a special purpose financial report, of the 
Lane Cove Cricket Club Inc., which comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 April 
2025, the statement of profit or loss for the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the officers’ assertion 
statement. 
 
Officers’ responsibility for the financial report  
 
The officers of the Lane Cove Cricket Inc. are responsible for the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial report and have determined that the basis of preparation described 
in Note 1, is appropriate to meet the requirements of the Act and is appropriate to meet the needs 
of the members. The officers’ responsibility also includes such internal control as the officers 
determine is necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of a financial report that 
is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s responsibility  
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We have 
conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require 
that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from 
material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the association’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the association’s internal control. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates made by the officers, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial report. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
 
In my opinion, the financial report gives a true and fair view of the financial position of the Lane 
Cove Cricket Club Inc. as at 30 April 2025, and its financial performance for the year then ended. 
 
Basis of accounting 
 



 

 

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 to the financial report, which 
describes the basis of accounting. The financial report has been prepared to assist the Lane Cove 
Cricket Club Inc. to meet the requirements of the Act.  As a result, the financial report may not 
be suitable for another purpose.  
 
 
FORDHAMS 
 
Darren Hill 
 
DARREN HILL 
Partner 
 
 
  



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SEASON 2024/25 
 

SENIOR CLUB REPORTS 
   



 

 

First Grade Report – 2024/25 
 
1s went into the season full of excitement and hope. With some spin and batting depth picked 
up, it felt like it could be an ideal balance of cricketers and personalities to make a run for 
some premierships. Many recent seasons of so close yet so far had the boys desperate to 
break our premiership drought and returning skippers Corny and Rig thought we just might 
have the squad to do it. 
 
Unfortunately, our availability early in the season wasn’t great and together with some poor 
performances meant we lost Round 1 when we should have won, scraped through Round 2 
with a win before being chased down in Round 3. Finally, Round 4 showed us putting up the 
type of performance we knew we were capable of, dismantling Southern Districts who would 
go on to become minor premiers. A convincing 5 wicket win against Souths in Round 5 had 
us believing we were onto something, before a washout against Norwest in Round 6 when we 
were significantly ahead of the game halted momentum. 
 
Round 7 brought with it our worst performance of the season, where nothing much went 
right, and we were convincingly beaten by Epping. Perhaps it was the loss we needed though 
as we went on to roll Burwood in Round 8 with a significantly depleted side. A washout 
without a ball bowled in Round 9 took us to Round 10 and the last of the one-day games. 
Sitting outside the one-day top 4 and having all but lost belief of a maiden one-day finals 
series, we went on to play one of our games of the year. Scoring 163, we then rolled 
Warringah for 54, picking up a bonus point in the process and sneaking our way into finals. 
Whilst we waited for the one-day finals to roll around with our bye in Round 11, we then 
outrighted Penno in Round 12 to take lots of momentum into the business end of the season. 
 
The boys were playing some really good cricket and went into the one-day final series with a 
lot of optimism, knowing that our best cricket was going to be very hard to beat. The semi-
final came around and we were going up against first place Strathfield. A rare toss win saw 
us setting a total, with lots of our top and middle order chipping in, we put up an impressive 
273 off our 50 overs. Our bowlers all had a role to play but our spin led from the front to 
bowl Strathfield out for 187 and we were into our first 1s grand final in 13 years. 
 
The grand final saw us heading out to Southern Districts for the big day. Losing the toss 
(shock) meant we were bowling first on a good batting wicket. SDs got off to a good start and 
we were staring down the barrel of a big chase. Two great run outs changed the game for us 
with our spin attack then going to work, restricting SDs to 211 all out. We chipped away at 
the chase early and by the time we were 3 down, we were just shy of halfway. Our 4th wicket 
partnership then put on an absolute clinic on how to go about run chases. Unfortunately, we 
lost our 4th wicket just two runs shy of the total but that didn’t dampen our spirits as we 
cruised to a 6 wicket win. An amazing performance by our boys to beat 1st and then 2nd on 
the ladder in convincing fashion as we finally had some silverware to celebrate. 
 
As the dust settled on our one-day heroics, attention turned to the two-day competition and an 
attempt at making history being the first club to win both 1st Grade premierships. The final 
round of the regular season ended with a big win against fellow top 6 club Strathfield, and we 
were heading into the final series in 3rd place. The home quarter final had us hosting Auburn 
and after losing the toss (shock), we were batting first. 122 overs later and 296 on the board, 
we had the knowledge that a draw or a win would see us into the semis. Early wickets put the 
result all but to bed and as the remaining overs ran down, the captains shook hands. 



 

 

 
Into the semi-finals we marched, coming up against Burwood away which hadn’t been a 
happy hunting ground in finals for us. Losing the toss for the umpteenth time this season, we 
had ball in hand knowing that if we could just manage to get 10 wickets with a decent 
amount of time left, our batsmen had runs in them to get us into a grand final. Day 1 was a 
long, tough day as we toiled away. Momentum was hard to come by, but we took semi 
regular wickets to keep us in it. Finally, the 10th wicket fell with a few overs left in the day 
which we safely navigated. Turning up to day 2 we had all day to score 260 runs, thinking 
that if we could just get through the new ball we could chip away at the total with our batting 
depth. Unfortunately, we had a horror start losing 3 wickets within 3 overs and we never 
really recovered from there, being bowled out for 103.  
 
A heartbreaking way to go out with our batting being so strong for so many months but credit 
must go to Burwood for their class once again in finals. Still, it was a season to be so proud 
of and one that broke our premiership drought. It is great to know that we have what it takes 
to win comps and hopefully this is just the start of much more success for our first-grade 
squad and club as a whole. I feel like we had a great mix of personalities this season and it 
was so much fun being a part of a squad where so many people could turn up on the day and 
win us the game. It was also great to see so many young guys come into the 1s set up and fill 
holes when we had players out. I honestly think that we are just scratching the surface of 
what this great club could do both on and off the field and that is something exciting to be a 
part of. 
 
Alec Cornelius and Mike Bryant 
2024-25 LCCC 1st Grade Co-Captains 
 
First Grade – 2024/25 at a Glance 
 
First Grade RB Clark Cup 
 
Minor Competition Summary 
 
Played 12 
Won Outright 1 
Won 1st Innings  6 
Drawn 2 
Lost 1st Innings 3 
Lost Outright 0 
Wickets Lost 72 
Runs For 1752 
Wickets Taken 125 
Runs Against 1989 
Quotient 1.529 
Competition Points 47 
Position 3 of 13 
 
Match Summaries 
 
RND HOME TEAM  AWAY TEAM VENUE 



 

 

1 Lane Cove 
97  R Ravi 51, A Ramakrishnan 3/32 

def by Roseville 
121  P Gall 40, B Greaves 3/21 

Tantallon 

2 Lane Cove 
5/113  M Nassif 38* 

def Lindfield 
112  U Saddiq 3/24 

Tantallon 

3 Auburn 
6/292  A Singh 132, J Khan 54, A 
Usman 36, I Tariq 31 

def Lane Cove 
6/291d  J Scott 74, R Ravi, 69, M 
Byrant 56, D Ahmed 3/64, G Ebert 
3/75 

George Parry 

4 Lane Cove 
7/226d   
and 2/8   

def Mt Prichard Southern Districts 
138   
and 120   

Tantallon 

5 Lane Cove 
5/169   

def Balmain South Sydney 
168  T Rahman 66, J Caddick 40*, M 
Cross 4/35, U Saddiq 3/27 

Tantallon 

6 North West Sydney 
158  J Hansen 43, G Dhillon 37, U 
Saddiq 5/51 

drew Lane Cove 
0/14   

Kanebridge 

7 Epping 
6/245(cc)  J Plakourakis 55, N Everitt 
47  

def Lane Cove 
151  F Egleston 41 

North Epping 

8 Lane Cove 
6/90  L Roughley 37*, A Squire 3/18 

def Burwood 
86  R Ravi 3/13, J Scarcella 3/35 

Tantallon 

9 Georges River drew Lane Cove Bexley 

10 Warringah 
54  R Ravi 4/8, J Scarcella 3/31 

def by Lane Cove 
8/163(cc)  M O’Donoghue 57, L 
Roughley 30 

Weldon 

11 Lane Cove bye 
 

 

12 Lane Cove 
5/183d  M O’Donoghue 72*, L 
Roughley 50, N Bokhari 3/66 
and 2/29   

def Pennant Hills 
105  R Anjum 30, J Scarcella 5/22 
and 106  R Anjum 35, J Scarcella 4/13, 
U Saddiq 3/25 

Tantallon 

13 Strathfield 
159  R Snape 58, F Egleston 5/52 
and 3/125  C Beadle 59* 

def by Lane Cove 
4/218d  F Egleston 85, M Byrant 71 

Airey 

QF Lane Cove 
296  A Cornelius 75, L Roughley 69, F 
Egleston 41, D Ahmed 4/76, G Ebert 
3/54, B Pearson 3/67 

drew Auburn 
9/225  S Qaiser 58, A Daniels 57*, J 
Scarcella 3/64 

Tantallon 

SF Burwood 
263  B Wright 99*, T Moffitt 45, A 
Gardner 30, R Ravi 4/30 

def Lane Cove 
103  J Scott 31, C Holmes 6/27, B 
Wright 3/28 

Rothwell 

 
Notes: 
Rd 12 – LCCC 1st innings partnerships not recorded in PlayHQ 



 

 

Rd 13 – LCCC partnerships not recorded in PlayHQ 
 
First Grade Limited Overs 
 
Minor Competition Summary 
 
Played 5 
Won 1st Innings  3 
Drawn 1 
Lost 1st Innings 1 
Runs For 463 
Overs Faced 162.2 
Runs Against 376 
Overs Bowled 184.0 
Net Run Rate 0.808 
Competition Points 19 
Position 4 of 13 
 
Match Summaries 
 
RND HOME TEAM  AWAY TEAM VENUE 

1 Lane Cove 
97  R Ravi 51, A Ramakrishnan 3/32 

def by Roseville 
121  P Gall 40, B Greaves 3/21 

Tantallon 

2 Lane Cove 
5/113  M Nassif 38* 

def Lindfield 
112  U Saddiq 3/24 

Tantallon 

3 Lane Cove 
6/90  L Roughley 37*, A Squire 3/18 

def Burwood 
86  R Ravi 3/13, J Scarcella 3/35 

Tantallon 

4 Georges River drew Lane Cove Bexley 

5 Warringah 
54  R Ravi 4/8, J Scarcella 3/31 

def by Lane Cove 
8/163(cc)  M O’Donoghue 57, L 
Roughley 30 

Weldon 

SF Strathfield 
187  R Snape 63*, S Reynolds 33, F 
Egleston 3/32, M O’Donoghue 3/35 

def by Lane Cove 
6/273(cc)  L Gray 69, M Byrant 59, L 
Roughley 56, R Ravi 33* 

Airey 

GF Mt Prichard Southern Districts 
211  P Chaudhary 56, M Grealy 37 

def by Lane Cove 
4/212  M Byrant 73, M O’Donoghue 
57 

Greenway 

 
 
First Grade – Batting 
 

Player Mat Inn NO 100s 50s 0s HS Runs Avg Ctch Stmp 
Roughley, Lachlan 14 13 1 0 2 1 69 311 25.92 2 - 
Egleston, Frederick 13 13 1 0 2 2 85 308 25.67 1 - 
Bryant, Michael 12 12 1 0 2 3 71 250 22.73 2 - 
Scott, Julian 11 11 2 0 1 0 74 231 25.67 2 - 



 

 

RAVI, Ravi 13 11 2 0 2 1 69 202 22.44 2 - 
O'Donoghue, Michael 7 7 3 0 2 1 72 190 47.50 5 - 
Cornelius, Alec 13 7 4 0 1 1 75 111 37.00 4 - 
King, Harvey 8 8 1 0 1 0 65 109 15.57 - - 
Cross, Mitchell 11 8 3 0 0 0 26 108 21.60 3 - 
Nassif, Micah 5 5 1 0 0 0 38 63 15.75 3 1 
Hume, Liam 9 5 0 0 0 0 28 49 9.80 16 - 
Scarcella, Joe 11 4 1 0 0 0 18 36 12.00 1 - 
Van der Merwe, Ben 2 1 0 0 0 0 11 11 11.00 - 1 
Gray, Layton 2 1 0 0 0 0 11 11 11.00 - - 
Greaves, Ben 8 2 1 0 0 0 5 9 9.00 2 - 
Goh, Tom 1 1 0 0 0 0 8 8 8.00 - - 
Saddiq, Usama 10 4 2 0 0 1 6 7 3.50 2 - 
Devine, Ryan 2 2 0 0 0 1 5 5 2.50 - - 
Arnold, Ned 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - - - 
Mackay, Angus 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - - - 
Micheletti, Luca 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - 2 - 

 
 
Best Partnerships 
 
To be completed 
 
 1 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 2 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 3 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 4 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 5 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 6 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 7 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 8 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 9 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 10 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 
 
First Grade – Bowling 
 

Player Mat Overs Mdns Wkts Runs 5WI 10WI Avg Best Strike Econ 
Egleston, Frederick 13 169.0 ? 32 471 3 1 14.72 6-42 31.69 2.79 
Scarcella, Joe 11 117.5 ? 26 369 1 0 14.19 5-22 27.19 3.13 
Saddiq, Usama 10 162.1 ? 23 497 1 0 21.61 5-51 42.30 3.06 
RAVI, Ravi 13 161.3 ? 22 371 0 0 16.86 4-8 44.00 2.30 
Greaves, Ben 8 51.0 ? 11 228 0 0 20.73 3-21 27.82 4.47 
Cornelius, Alec 13 62.1 ? 9 204 0 0 22.67 2-10 41.44 3.28 
Cross, Mitchell 11 51.3 ? 6 146 0 0 24.33 4-35 51.50 2.83 
O'Donoghue, Michael 7 15.0 ? 2 51 0 0 25.50 2-22 45.00 3.40 
Arnold, Ned 2 10.0 ? 0 37 0 0 - 0-7 - 3.70 

 



 

 

  



 

 

Second Grade Report – 2024/25 
 
We started off the season with a new captain being appointed as well as a fair few new faces 
in the team. Game 1 was a one dayer against Roseville which turned out to be a low scoring 
affair. Having bundled out Roseville for 117 runs in 47 overs, we chased the target 7 down 
with 21 overs to spare bringing in the first win of the season with a bonus point secured. We 
didn’t realise it at the time the importance of this bonus point win in the context of our 
season. 
 
Shortage of players early in the season forced to make 6 changes for Game 2 away at 
Linfield. Nonetheless we put up a good fight with the ball with all the new players standing 
up, however we couldn’t quite put together a solid batting effort and fell short of the runs. We 
followed this up with our first 2 dayer at home vs Auburn. After a strong start to have Auburn 
5 – 63, we let them off the hook and they reached 197. Once again, our batting effort was 
well below par with a total of 106 which was a disappointing end to the game and a result 
which should have gone our way against a weaker team. 
 
We went into Game 4 requiring a big turnaround and fight back to get our season back on 
track, however this wouldn’t come easy against top of the table Southern Districts away from 
home. This is where the season really started for us in my opinion. The fight that we showed 
to win this game is the same fight that we took into the rest of the season and something I 
will be looking forward to revamping in the season ahead. After being 7 for 68, Andrew 
Roberston and Isaac Edmunds steered the team to 192 all out, both scoring 50s and setting up 
a great finish to Day 1. The pressure we put on in the last session of the day yielded results 
and we had them on the ropes at 4 for 34. Day 2 required another big effort to reel in the 6 
points and a strong bowling effort all round saw us take the win by 31 runs. 
 
We took this confidence into the next game against Balmain away. Putting up a total of 255, 
our highest of the season, with Ryan Devine batting brilliantly for his 85 runs. A brilliant 
show of fast pace bowling from Angus Mackay saw him steam through the top order picking 
up 4 wickets and Ben Greaves clean up the tail with 3 wickets resulting in a 71 run victory 
and sealing 2 wins in a row away from home vs strong opposition. Unfortunately, we 
couldn’t back this up the following game vs North West, dropping 6 points having scored 79 
runs from 31 overs in our first innings of a two dayer game, and we were comfortably beaten 
at home. 
 
We needed to bounce back strong, and this came against Epping in a thriller one wicket win. 
We dismissed Epping for 166 thanks to an excellent opening spell by Ned Arnold who took 6 
wickets in the innings and his first 5 wicket haul for LCCC. In return we were 8 for 134 and 
staring down the barrel of another loss. However, the fight shown in earlier games is what got 
us through and a brilliant partnership from Ned Arnold and Michael O’Donoghue saw us 
pick up the points and sing the team song loud and proud. 
 
Game 8 saw us take on the old foe Burwood away in a one dayer. This turned out to be by far 
our worst bowling and fielding performance with Burwood finishing on 6 for 241. To this 
point, no team had put 200 runs on us. We started strong; however, we lost wickets at crucial 
points in the game and were all out for 165 with Steve Matheson putting in a shift to bring up 
his half century. We played Georges River at home next, and they batted well on a wet and 
tricky wicket to get themselves to 2 for 84 after which the bowlers put in a shift and we 
closed out the innings at 158, which should have been a very achievable target. This time it 



 

 

was our batting again which let us down being 7 for 43 at one point to finish 90 all out, with a 
strong performance of 43 runs at the top of the order by Julian Scott. 
 
The equation was simple at this point if we had any intentions of playing finals cricket; we 
needed 2 wins from our next 2 games at a minimum, plus a few results to go our way. The 
lads trained hard and the youngish squad of mostly under 24s were up for the fight and 
revving to go. First up was Pennant Hills away. We batted first and once again put up a poor 
performance being all out for 118 on a relatively flat deck. Pennant Hills were 2 for 58 at the 
last drinks break of the day, and in anyone’s books you would have had your money on it 
being season over for LCCC. However, with the chips down and our season on the line the 
lads turned the last session into one that all 11 players on the field will never forget. Joe 
Camarsh kicked off the collapse with two quick wickets in one over and was supported by 
Angus Mackay at the other end who picked up 5 for 25. In the space of 14 overs, we turned 
the game on its head picking up the remaining 8 wickets and securing 6 points having skittled 
the opposition for 88. We were hungry for more and scored an additional 120 runs in the 2nd 
innings setting up a declaration and 150 runs for the opposition to chase in 2 sessions. We got 
very close to the elusive outright shaking hands at the end of day 2 with Pennant Hills on 7-
118. 
 
Our last game of the season was against Strathfield at home. A brilliant all round 
performance saw us close out the first innings with Strathfield all out 103. In return we had a 
strong start with Joe Camarsh smashing a quick 47 runs to put us in a commanding position 
with a lead of 42 runs. Having heard the other match results and scenarios around the 
grounds, the equation was clear. We needed an outright to play finals cricket otherwise it was 
season over. This brought renewed energy, focus and determination from the team which is 
the same fight we showed throughout the season. We worked incredibly hard to get the 
opposition all out for 121 leaving us with 79 runs to score in the last 8 overs of the day to 
play finals cricket. Step up Harvey King scoring 41 not out in 28 deliveries to bring home the 
outright victory, the first of the season and the most important win of the season. 
 
This set up a finals berth against Burwood who were 2nd on the table, meeting them at a 
neutral venue and coming off the back of two solid wins, we always thought we stood a great 
chance of a win. With significant downpour during the week, it was an important toss to win 
which we unfortunately didn’t. This led to our worst batting performance of the season 
collapsing to 37 all out. However, the fight that we had shown all season is the fight that was 
shown by the 11 men who turned up for the occasion. From 4 for 68, we picked up the last 6 
wickets for 9 runs dismissing Burwood for 77. An excellent 5 fa from Joe Camarsh and once 
again well supported by Angus Mackay’s 3 wickets and Ben Greaves 2 wickets. We had the 
game in the balance and all to play for going into the 2nd innings wrapping up an eventful 
Day 1 at 4 for 44 with a lead of 4 runs. We came into Day 2 with a lot of hope and 
confidence knowing that if we could put up another 70 to 80 runs from our last 6 wickets, we 
were definitely in the game. However, this was not to be, and we lost 6 cheap wickets for 18 
runs leaving Burwood 23 runs to win. We fought hard to the very end taking another 3 scalps 
with us; however, it wasn’t enough, and Burwood were victorious with 7 wickets in hand. 
 
A disappointing end to our finals journey, however I could not be disappointed with the effort 
and fight shown by our playing group to make it into finals cricket and represent the club 
with pride. All in all, it was a fantastic season and thoroughly enjoyable as my first as captain 
of 2nd grade. Everyone who came into the team found a way to contribute to the success of 



 

 

the season and I’m incredibly proud of what we achieved on the field as well as the culture 
built off it. I cannot wait to have another crack at it with this young group of lads next season. 
 
Zeus Irani 
2024-25 LCCC 2nd Grade Captain 
 
Second Grade – 2024/25 at a Glance 
 
Minor Competition Summary 
 
Played 12 
Won Outright 1 
Won 1st Innings  5 
Drawn 1 
Lost 1st Innings 5 
Lost Outright 0 
Wickets Lost 115 
Runs For 1760 
Wickets Taken 120 
Runs Against 2028 
Quotient 0.905 
Competition Points 41 
Position 5 of 13 
 
Match Summaries 
 
RND HOME TEAM  AWAY TEAM VENUE 

1 Roseville 
117  Fill In 3/15, N Arnold 3/23 

def by Lane Cove 
7/121  Z Mufti 51 

Roseville Chase 

2 Lindfield 
191  J Cefai 54, S Watts 31, A 
Robertson 3/19, Fill-in 3/49 

def Lane Cove 
120  A Frawley 4/29 

Lindfield Soldiers 
Memorial 

3 Lane Cove 
106  P Blood 36, M N Mohamed Shan 
5/23, A Hadley 3/32 

def by Auburn 
197  Z K Jadoon 59, M N Mohamed 
Shan 49, C Hipkin 3/15, N Arnold 3/50 
and 1/13   

Tantallon 

4 Mt Prichard Southern Districts 
161  S Reza 38, T Carnovale 35, A 
Mackay 3/30, L Gray 3/40 

def by Lane Cove 
192  I Edmunds 63, A Robertson 55, M 
Morley 3/53 

Greenway 1 

5 Balmain South Sydney 
184  M Wykniet 49*, N A Haider 33, I 
Masud 32, A Mackay 4/28, B Greaves 
3/32 

def by Lane Cove 
255  R Devine 85, J Camarsh 43, L 
Gray 42, S Hoque 4/76, N Azzimi 3/35 

Alan Davidson 

6 North West Sydney 
6/170  N Hemadri 55, G Brien 39* 

def Lane Cove 
79  M O’Donoghue 30, M Diamond 
4/19, K Grady 3/11 

Tantallon 



 

 

7 Lane Cove 
9/168  L Gray 41, J Kingston 37, M 
O’Donoghue 32, E Mear 3/23, B Ford 
3/53 

def Epping 
166  E Mear 45, D Andrahannadi 35, N 
Arnold 6/31 

Tantallon 

8 Burwood 
6/241(cc)  M Harrison 113*, A Favotto 
69, O Williams 33 

def Lane Cove 
165  S Matheson 57, Z Irani 35, J lee 
4/38 

Rothwell 

9 Lane Cove 
90  J Scott 43, B Vella 3/18, J Casey 
3/22 

def by Georges River 
158  A McGuiness 73, N Condylios 31, 
R Devine 3/16 

Tantallon 

10 Lane Cove drew Warringah Tantallon 

11 Lane Cove bye 
 

 

12 Pennant Hills 
88  A Mackay 5/25, J Camarsh 4/23 
and 7/118   

def by Lane Cove 
118  R Devine 41, S Abeygunaratne 
4/17 
and 8/120d  S Matheson 46, S Naqvi 
3/28 

Pennant Hills 

13 Lane Cove 
145  J Camarsh 47, M A Hossain 3/9, A 
Kumar 3/55 
and 1/81  H King 41* 

def Strathfield 
103  C Forrest 3/23 
and 121  A Kumar 50*, J Camarsh 
5/33 

Tantallon 

QF Burwood 
77  J Camarsh 5/9, A Mackay 3/19 
and 3/23   

def Lane Cove 
37  J Papathanasiou 4/4 
and  62  H Lee 7/18, S Davis 3/25 

Ron Routley 

 
Notes: 
Rd 1 – Fill-in players not updated in PlayHQ 
Rd 2 – Fill-in players not updated in PlayHQ 
Rd 4 – LCCC partnerships not recorded in PlayHQ 
Rd 5 – LCCC partnerships not recorded in PlayHQ 
Rd 6 – LCCC partnerships not recorded in PlayHQ 
Rd 7 – LCCC partnerships not recorded in PlayHQ 
Rd 13 – LCCC partnerships not recorded in PlayHQ – 1st  and 2nd Innings 
 
Second Grade – Batting 
 
To be completed 
 
 
 
Best Partnerships 
 
To be completed 
 
 1 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 2 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 3 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 



 

 

 4 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 5 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 6 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 7 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 8 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 9 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 10 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 
Second Grade – Bowling 
 
To be completed 
 
 
 
  



 

 

Third Grade Report – 2024/25 
 
As the season wraps up, I want to take a moment to reflect on what’s been an incredible ride 
– on and off the field. 
 
First, a big thank you to the committee. You’ve kept everything running smoothly – 
organising, coordinating, and ensuring the only chaos we faced was on the pitch. We’re 
grateful for your support. 
 
Special mention goes to Tiger, who stepped up brilliantly this season. Whether it was 
managing the chaos or strapping on the pads himself, he’s been the team’s Swiss Army knife 
– always handy, always dependable. 
 
To Adith, Edward Dodds and Calum, your steady support has been invaluable – quiet 
achievers, but critical pillars of the squad. 
 
Match Highlights 
 

• Auburn: A tightly contested game that went down to the wire—we came out on top, 
showing grit and composure under pressure. 

• Norwest: We were in control and looked set for another win before rain decided it 
had other plans. Spoil sport! 

• Burwood: A hard-fought match where the most impressive moment came off the 
field – credit to the eldest Dodds for negotiating with the neighbours of KSO to 
retrieve the ball. That’s the last diplomatic mission for Doddy, we promise. 

 
Team Spirit 
This season was about more than just results—we showed heart. We had guest appearances 
from Benny, Charlie, Pete, and Ned, bringing energy, banter, and some wild swings with 
the bat. My personal highlight? A cheeky 50 in the last game of the season – one I won’t let 
anyone forget anytime soon. 
 
Takeaways 
 

• We trained hard 
• We committed to each other and the game 
• And most importantly—we had fun 

 
Looking Ahead 
It’s been an honour to captain this group. We’ve built something special—not just a team, but 
a culture that values effort, laughter, and mateship. With the spirit we’ve shown this season, I 
have no doubt we’re ready to have a real crack next year. 
 
Thanks again, and see you next season—refreshed, recharged, and maybe even slightly better 
at cricket. 
 
Arun Sirrpi 
2024-25 LCCC 3rd Grade Captain 
 



 

 

 
Third Grade – 2024/25 at a Glance 
 
Minor Competition Summary 
 
Played 12 
Won Outright 0 
Won 1st Innings  1 
Drawn 2 
Lost 1st Innings 7 
Lost Outright 2 
Wickets Lost 123 
Runs For 1721 
Wickets Taken 76 
Runs Against 2207 
Quotient 0.481 
Competition Points 12 
Position 13 of 13 
 
Match Summaries 
 
RND HOME TEAM  AWAY TEAM VENUE 

1 Lane Cove drew Roseville Kingsford Smith 

2 Lane Cove 
151  S Liguory 31, M Hardman 3/31 

def by Lindfield 
2/154  R Pengelly 63*, B Scott 31*, P 
McCallum 30 

Kingsford Smith 

3 Auburn 
213  S Shinde 81, A Khosa 6/51 

def by Lane Cove 
225  J Brahamanandam 73, T Bauer 
45, T Khunmuang 40, MK Shakeel 
3/17, S Zammit 3/37 

Mona 

4 Lane Cove 
125  C Mawson 42, T Khunmuang 31, 
A Rauf 3/25 
and 118  N Maini 48, A Rauf 3/10, S 
Metten 3/23, M S Shamas 3/36 

def by Mt Prichard Southern Districts 
5/156d  Z Haider 63, M Faisal 31*, B 
Greaves 3/39 
and 1/92  Z Haider 51* 

Kingsford Smith 

5 Lane Cove 
91  A Williams 4/25, C Cleary 4/30 
and 70  A Williams 5/18 

def by Balmain South Sydney 
9/289d  B Laverty 77, A Williams 50*, 
C Rowe 37, C Cleary 36, J High 6/78 

Kingsford Smith 

6 North West Sydney 
168  M Broschofsky 43*, A Dhond 35, 
R Dickinson 3/28, A Khosa 3/33 

drew Lane Cove 
3/33   

Charles 
McLaughlin 

7 Epping 
9/313(cc)  Bolger 101, N Paxton 54, A 
Tanveer 36, A Sirripi 3/57, A Khosa 
3/66 

def Lane Cove 
105  T Lokray 33, N Birrell 3/29 

Epping 



 

 

8 Lane Cove 
163  S Liguory 31, S Karkare 3/48 

def Burwood 
5/166  B Miller 35, M Harrington 33, E 
Dodds 3/38 

Kingsford Smith 

9 Georges River drew Lane Cove Lance Hutchinson 

10 Warringah 
1/92  R Donato 39*, M S Bhatty 33* 

def Lane Cove 
91  C Wilson 3/12 

Frank Gray 

11 Lane Cove bye 
 

 

12 Lane Cove 
145  AC Viswanathan 4/41, S Gosavi 
3/18 
and 167  J Kingston 39, S Perry 34, T 
Khunmuang 30, K N Nanjundesh 4/31 

def by Pennant Hills 
184  AC Viswanathan 76, E Dodds 
3/44 
and 4/154  A Shitole 85, A C 
Viswanathan 42 

Kingsford Smith 

13 Strathfield 
226  P Sheth 55, A Ramaneetharan 39, 
S Bavda 33, L Shaw 4/61, C Mawson 
3/52 

def Lane Cove 
167  A Sirripi 51, S Liguory 49* 
and 2/70  C Mawson 42 

Bark Huts 

 
Notes: 
Rd 2 – Fill-in players not updated in PlayHQ 
Rd 3 – Fill-in players not updated in PlayHQ 
Rd 5 – LCCC partnerships not recorded in PlayHQ 
Rd 6 – LCCC partnerships not recorded in PlayHQ 
Rd 8 – Fill-in players not updated in PlayHQ 
Rd 9 – LCCC partnerships not recorded in PlayHQ 
Rd 12 – LCCC partnerships & 2nd innings bowling not recorded in PlayHQ 
 
Third Grade – Batting 
 
To be completed 
 
 
 
Best Partnerships 
 
To be completed 
 
 1 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 2 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 3 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 4 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 5 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 6 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 7 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 8 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 9 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 10 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 
Third Grade – Bowling 
 



 

 

To be completed 
 
 
 
  



 

 

Fourth Grade Report – 2024/25 
 
To be completed 
 
 
Andrew Bray 
2024-25 LCCC 4th Grade Captain 
 
Fourth Grade – 2024/25 at a Glance 
 
Minor Competition Summary 
 
Played 12 
Won Outright 0 
Won 1st Innings  0 
Drawn 2 
Lost 1st Innings 8 
Lost Outright 2 
Wickets Lost 135 
Runs For 1785 
Wickets Taken 64 
Runs Against 1833 
Quotient 0.461 
Competition Points 3 
Position 13 of 13 
 
Match Summaries 
 
RND HOME TEAM  AWAY TEAM VENUE 

1 Roseville 
0/69   

def Lane Cove 
68  V Siragaon 3/17 

Roseville Park 

2 Lindfield 
9/193  O Sved 36, T Gulawita 32, K Vij 
4/30 

def Lane Cove 
190  K Crayn 44, K Sharma 35, K Vij 32, 
E D’Souza 3/15 

Acron 

3 Lane Cove 
100  P Bailey-Fong 4/13, H Mohamed 
3/26 
and 4/157  S Matheson 104* 

def by Auburn 
194  K Singla 94, S Sharma 3/27 

Kingsford Smith 

4 Mt Prichard Southern Districts 
9/247d  B Parmar 58, G Purani 54*, S 
Grover 4/44 

def Lane Cove 
162  S Matheson 84*, K Sharma 43, M 
Patel 4/40, W Morris 3/33 

Greenway 2 

5 Balmain South Sydney 
9/203d  A Thomas 54, V Natesh 30, 
NSK Koppisetty 3/37 

def Lane Cove 
118  G Mina 44, N Nafcy 4/23, A 
Mehta 4/34 

Jubilee 

6 North West Sydney 
3/23  S Sharma 3/5 

drew Lane Cove 
173  A Bray 56*, Z Mufti 33, I ware 
4/19, C Pathiranage 3/26 

Kingsford Smith 



 

 

7 Lane Cove 
134  A Bray 51, NSK Koppisetty 48, S 
Chakraborty 3/15, J Howes 3/39 
and 2/33   

def by Epping 
4/219d  A Aggarwal 107*, J Armytage 
60 

Kingsford Smith 

8 Burwood 
1/75  P Roach 40 

def Lane Cove 
74  G Metcalfe 3/16 

Ron Routley 

9 Lane Cove 
112  M Hickey 31, S Purohit 4/36, A Ali 
3/6, F Lategan 3/21 

def by Georges River 
1/118  DK Arunachalam 66, Private 
Player 34*  

Kingsford Smith 

10 Lane Cove drew Warringah Kingsford Smith 

11 Lane Cove bye 
 

 

12 Pennant Hills 
9/207d  C Barkat 68, N Varsani 64*, 
NSK Koppisetty 4/32 
and 2/18   

def Lane Cove 
134  T Lokray 54, N Varsani 5/31 
and 91  N Arnold 31, V Evans 4/28, N 
Varsani 3/15 

Ern Holmes 

13 Lane Cove 
96  Z Mufti 35, S Singh 5/12 
and 145  Z Mufti 53, R Saluja 7/54 

def by Strathfield 
7/267d  HA Asadullah 76, R Saluja 66, 
V Sisodiya 31, S Singh 30  

Kingsford Smith 

 
Notes: 
Rd 7 – Fill-in players not updated in PlayHQ 
Rd 12 – LCCC partnerships not recorded in PlayHQ 
Rd 13 – LCCC partnerships not recorded in PlayHQ 
 
Fourth Grade – Batting 
 
To be completed 
 
 
Best Partnerships 
 
To be completed 
 
 1 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 2 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 3 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 4 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 5 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 6 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 7 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 8 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 9 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 10 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 
Fourth Grade – Bowling 
 
To be completed 
 



 

 

 
  



 

 

Fifth Grade Report – 2024/25 
 
In agricultural terms, Lane Cove 5th grade had a dry year when it came to the number of 
matches won. Despite their final position on the ladder, there was plenty to be proud of and 
plenty to look forward to for next season. 
 
The team had 44 players over the course of the season with an age range of 14 to 60. It was 
great to see the senior players pass on their knowledge of the game to the younger up and 
coming players. The skill set of the Lane Cove junior players is very impressive, and I have 
no doubt we will see them transition into the higher grades of the club as they continue to 
develop. 
 
The key highlight for the team was beating Epping Bulls to ensure we got a win for the 
season. In this game Lane Cove won the toss and sent Epping in to bat on a green pitch. 
Young gun Max Lynn was bowling with pace and had the ball darting sideways, taking 3/24 
off 8 overs to ensure Epping were all out for 106. Lane Cove then went into bat and were 
guided to victory by Kunal Shahi who scored a faultless half century. 
 
Individually there was a number of good performances with several players getting half 
centuries over the course of the season. 
 
Thanks to David Fagan who co-captained the side and assisted with much of the team 
management/organisation. 
 
The shadow batting starts now! 
 
Nick Ryan 
2024-25 LCCC 5th Grade Captain 
 
Fifth Grade – 2024/25 at a Glance 
 
Minor Competition Summary 
 
Played 19 
Won 1st Innings  1 
Drawn 2 
Lost 1st Innings 16 
Overs Faced 619.3  
Runs For 1883 
Overs Bowled 508.5 
Runs Against 2805 
Net Run Rate -2.473 
Competition Points 12 
Position 13 of 13 
 
Match Summaries 
 
RND HOME TEAM  AWAY TEAM VENUE 



 

 

1 Roseville 
6/181  T Pickering 93, S Chowdhury 
39, J Brookshaw 3/26 

def Lane Cove 
116  Fill-in 63 

Roseville Chase 

2 Lane Cove bye 
 

 

3 Mt Prichard Southern Districts 
5/263(cc)  H Champion 70, M 
Rangwala 60, A Asghar 42*, H Ali 36 

def Lane Cove 
4/198(cc)  L Gray 68, N Ryan 61, K 
Shahi 41* 

Greenway 1 

4 Lane Cove 
8/152(cc)  L Gray 53, N Ryan 35, K 
Vaibhav 4/38 

def by Strathfield 
2/153  M Khan 70*, K Vaibhav 57 

Tantallon 

5 Georges River def Lane Cove 
Forfeit   

Bland 

6 Lane Cove 
6/107  K Shahi 53, S Wilkin 3/10 

def Epping 
106  M Lynn 3/24 

Tantallon 

7 Lane Cove 
101  H Sirigiri 4/22 

def by Balmain South Sydney 
6/290(cc)  S Chaudhry 91, SP Jathar 
66*, H Raza 54 

Tantallon 

8 Warringah 
1/68  C Connors 40* 

def Lane Cove 
67  O Higgins 4/9 

Frank Gray 

9 Burwood 
0/115  P Roach 73*, J Lawrence 40* 

def Lane Cove 
114  I Bakshi 58 

St Lukes 

10 Auburn drew Lane Cove Mona 

11 Lane Cove bye 
 

 

12 North West Sydney 
4/176(cc)  J Gerad 75, O Patel 51* 

def Lane Cove 
135  A Spillane 38 

Charles 
McLaughlin 

13 Lane Cove 
141  S Poynton 42, A Nittala 37, H 
Thaker 3/24, A Asgher 3/26 

def by Mt Prichard Southern Districts 
9/190(cc)  S Battagliolo 64 

Tantallon 

14 Lane Cove 
175  T Lokray 54 

def by Auburn 
4/218(cc)  R Narain 100*, S Gitte 62* 

Kingsford Smith 

15 Lane Cove drew Georges River Tantallon 

16 Lane Cove 
98  S Liguory 43, VK Jothimani 3/5 

def by Pennant Hills 
7/194(cc)  J Macwan 75, A Ekanayake 
59, O Platt 3/31 

Tantallon 

17 Lane Cove 
120  B O’Sullivan 3/8 

def by Balmain South Sydney 
1/125  K Rawlley 44*, Y Kawale 38*, H 
Raza 35 

Tantallon 

18 Lane Cove 
78  A Durairaj 3/9, J Olde 3/18 

def by Warringah 
3/81  A Pike 34 

Tantallon 



 

 

19 Lindfield 
2/125  V Singh 56, A Platt 50* 

def Lane Cove 
5/124(cc)   

Lindfield Soldiers 
Memorial 

20 Pennant Hills 
5/268(cc)  A Patel 99, S Desai 55, J 
Macwan 44 

def Lane Cove 
45  JP Patel 5/8 

Pennant Hills 

21 Lane Cove 
112  N Ryan 60, D Nahar 4/18 

def by Roseville 
2/252(cc)  K Krishnakumar 104, N 
Blackmore 86*, N Shah 39 

Tantallon 

 
Notes: 
Rd 1 – Fill-in players not updated in PlayHQ 
Rd 1 – LCCC partnerships not recorded in PlayHQ 
Rd 3 – Fill-in players not updated in PlayHQ 
Rd 4 – Fill-in players not updated in PlayHQ 
Rd 6 – Fill-in players not updated in PlayHQ 
Rd 7 – Fill-in players not updated in PlayHQ 
Rd 8 – Fill-in players not updated in PlayHQ 
Rd 9 – Fill-in players not updated in PlayHQ 
Rd 12 – Fill-in players not updated in PlayHQ 
Rd 13 – Fill-in players not updated in PlayHQ 
Rd 14 – Fill-in players not updated in PlayHQ 
Rd 16 – Fill-in players not updated in PlayHQ 
Rd 16 – LCCC partnerships not recorded in PlayHQ 
Rd 17 – LCCC players, player scores and partnerships not recorded in PlayHQ 
Rd 18 – LCCC players, player scores and partnerships not recorded in PlayHQ 
Rd 19 – LCCC players, player scores and partnerships not recorded in PlayHQ 
Rd 20 – Fill-in players not updated in PlayHQ 
Rd 20 – LCCC partnerships not recorded in PlayHQ 
Rd 21 – Fill-in players not updated in PlayHQ 
Rd 21 – LCCC partnerships not recorded in PlayHQ 
 
 
Fifth Grade – Batting 
 
To be completed 
 
 
 
Best Partnerships 
 
To be completed 
 
 1 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 2 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 3 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 4 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 5 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 6 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 7 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 8 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 



 

 

 9 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 10 99 v Xxx A Aaa (99), B Bbb (99) 
 
Fifth Grade – Bowling 
 
To be completed 
 
 
 
  



 

 

Frank Gray Under 24s Report – 2024/25 
 
The Lane Cove under 24s squad turned up to our first game out at Pennant Hills with several 
new faces entering the team. We were filled with excitement and anticipation at the thought 
of the upcoming season. Although we had talented cricketers join our team, we knew we had 
a challenge on our hands as we’d been towards the bottom of the ladder for quite a few years. 
After blowing Pennant Hills away with the bat and getting through the longest 50 overs ever 
as they proceeded to dead bat everything for the last 42 overs, we nonetheless took the bonus 
point and were pleased with the way we started our campaign.  
 
Next up were rivals Lindfield. We were eager to swiftly defeat them and after a great wag 
from our tail we posted a very competitive 236. Lindfield’s batting proved to be no match for 
our strong bowling lineup as we rolled them for 114 yet again winning with a bonus point. 
We were starting to get excited about our team and how we compared to other teams, but we 
also knew the competition would get harder. 
 
We faced Epping in our next fixture who are competitive for the flag most seasons. After 
bowling really well we dismissed them out for 126 and were very pleased with our first half. 
We had some struggles along the way as our top order failed to make an impact but with the 
help of a miracle last wicket stand, we managed to pull off an outstanding victory.  
 
Round 4 saw us play Warringah who are the benchmark of the competition year in year out. 
We were quietly confident coming into the match and felt it was our time to stamp our 
authority on this competition. The game did not pan out as we had foreseen as we scrambled 
to post 235. The sun came out and the wicket was playing like Epping Road, and we failed to 
make an impact as Warringah’s batters were too much for us. We shrugged it off and hit the 
beach as this was the environment we were trying to create in the team; we play for fun so 
let’s have some. 
 
After still being in a good spot on the ladder the equation against Roseville was simple, win 
and we play finals, lose and we don’t. Through some great bowling and fielding we bowled 
them out for 112, and through some determined middle order batting we ensured Lane Cove 
would be appearing in finals for the first time since we won the flag in 2006/7. 
 
In our semi-final we made the trek out to North West’s beautiful home ground. After winning 
the toss we batted first on a wicket that was offering plenty. However, we fancied our 
chances defending if we could post a total. We worked our way to 201 on a tricky wicket that 
was holding on length. The wicket flattened out as yet again the sun emerged and baked the 
wicket. At 2/125 we were fighting hard to stay in it. An amazing fightback saw us take 8/67 
and seal an incredible win. 
 
We turned up to Weldon oval to face Warringah in the grand final and the boys were 
unbelievably excited for such a big day and couldn’t wait to get going. Batting first everyone 
chipped in to get us to 249 which we felt was enough. Everyone bowled extremely well to 
bowl them out for 218 as the whole club stormed the field. It was an amazing moment to be a 
part of and something we will remember for a long time. It was the first time since 2006/7 
that we had won the competition, and it marked off an incredible season from everyone 
involved. It was great to see everyone stand up at different moments and deliver for us time 
and time again. I hope everyone returns for another season as we look to go back-to-back. 
 



 

 

Lachlan Roughley 
2024-25 LCCC Frank Gray Captain 
 
Frank Gray – 2024/25 at a Glance 
 
Minor Competition Summary 
 
Played 5 
Won 1st Innings  4 
Drawn 0 
Lost 1st Innings 1 
Overs Faced 226.1 
Runs For 1019 
Overs Bowled 241.0 
Runs Against 752 
Net Run Rate 1.385 
Competition Points 26 
Position 2 of 6 
 
Match Summaries 
 
RND HOME TEAM  AWAY TEAM VENUE 

1 Pennant Hills 
4/163(cc)  S Woolley 46* 

def by Lane Cove 
6/305(cc)  L Roughley 115, H King 56, 
M Nassif 38 

Pennant Hills 

2 Lane Cove 
236  L Gray 55, R Devine 54, J Gillard 
3/22 

def Lindfield 
114  L Shaw 3/22, A MacKay 3/26 

Tantallon 

3 Epping 
126  N Arnold 4/30 

def by Lane Cove 
9/127  F Egleston 45, B McCarthy 
6/23 

North Epping 

4 Warringah 
5/237  J Terry 80, W Davidson 69, J 
Stearman 62*, M O’Donoghue 5/38 

def Lane Cove 
7/235(cc)  M O’Donoghue 54*, L 
Roughley 50, L Gray 30, H King 30 

Weldon 

5 Lane Cove 
6/116   

def Roseville 
112  J Leary 38, N Arnold 3/18, M 
O’Donoghue 3/26 

Tantallon 

SF North West Sydney 
192  H Sellahewa 84, C Forrest 5/33 

def by Lane Cove 
8/201(cc)  H King 46, L Gray 40, G 
Egleston 30, M Jones 3/29 

Bruce Purser 

GF Warringah 
218  J Terry 63, R Sheahan 30, F 
Egleston 4/25, J Kingston 3/32 

def by Lane Cove 
8/249(cc)  R Devine 64, L Gray 58, H 
King 38, R Sheahan 3/43 

Weldon 

 
 
Frank Gray – Batting 
 



 

 

Player Mat Inn NO 100s 50s 0s HS Runs Avg Ctch Stmp 
Roughley, Lachlan 7 7 0 1 1 0 115 241 34.43 1 - 
Gray, Layton 7 7 1 0 2 0 58 208 34.67 1 - 
King, Harvey 7 7 0 0 1 1 56 189 27.00 - - 
Egleston, Frederick 7 7 0 0 0 0 45 141 20.14 - - 
Devine, Ryan 6 6 0 0 2 1 64 139 23.17 1 - 
O'Donoghue, Michael 6 6 1 0 1 1 64 125 25.00 1 - 
Nassif, Micah 6 6 0 0 0 0 38 121 20.17 1 - 
Meichan, Oliver 4 4 4 0 0 0 26 66 - 4 4 
Kingston, Joshua 7 7 1 0 0 1 20 48 8.00 5 - 
Mackay, Angus 4 2 1 0 0 0 22 33 33.00 - - 
Micheletti, Luca 1 1 1 0 0 0 22 22 - 1 - 
Shaw, Lachy 3 2 1 0 0 0 15 17 17.00 - - 
High, Joshua 2 1 1 0 0 0 7 7 - - - 
Arnold, Ned 6 2 1 0 0 0 5 6 6.00 1 - 
Forrest, Carson 3 2 1 0 0 1 6 6 6.00 - - 
Lynn, Max 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - - - 
Micheletti, William 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - - - 

 
Best Partnerships 
 
 1 93 v Warringah (GF) L Gray (58), H King (38) 
 2 155 v Pennant Hills L Roughley (115), H King (56) 
 3 38 v Pennant Hills L Roughley (115), M Nassif (38) 
 4 48 v Epping F Egleston (45), R Devine (11) 
 5 72 v Warringah (GF) R Devine (64), M O’Donoghue (28) 
 6 100 v Warringah (Rd 4) M O’Donoghue (64*), L Roughley (50) 
 7 45 v Warringah (GF) R Devine (64), O Meichan (26*) 
 8 31 v Lindfield L Gray (55), L Shaw (15) 
 9 47 v Lindfield L Gray (55), L Micheletti (22*) 
 10 13 v Lindfield L Micheletti (22*), A Mackay (11) 
 
 
Frank Gray – Bowling 
 

Player Mat Overs Mdns Wkts Runs 5WI 10WI Avg Best Strike Econ 
Egleston, Frederick 7 62.5 ? 11 156 0 0 14.18 4-25 34.27 2.48 
O'Donoghue, Michael 6 44.0 ? 9 158 1 0 17.56 5-38 29.33 3.59 
Forrest, Carson 3 25.0 ? 7 95 1 0 13.57 5-33 21.43 3.80 
Mackay, Angus 4 32.1 ? 7 110 0 0 15.71 3-26 27.57 3.42 
Arnold, Ned 6 29.0 ? 7 128 0 0 18.29 4-30 24.86 4.41 
Kingston, Joshua 7 44.0 ? 6 165 0 0 27.50 3-32 44.00 3.75 
Shaw, Lachy 3 19.5 ? 3 92 0 0 30.67 3-22 39.67 4.64 
High, Joshua 2 20.0 ? 1 88 0 0 88.00 1-24 120.0 4.40 
Gray, Layton 7 27.0 ? 1 101 0 0 101.0 1-15 162.0 3.74 
Devine, Ryan 6 5.1 ? 0 19 0 0 - 0-9 - 3.68 
Lynn, Max 1 2.0 ? 0 9 0 0 - 0-9 - 4.50 

  



 

 

Masters Over 40s Report – 2024/25 
 
To be completed 
 
 
Neil McLeod 
2024-25 LCCC Masters Captain 
 
Masters – 2024/25 at a Glance 
 
Played 11 
Won 1st Innings 2 
Drawn 1 
Lost 1st Innings 8 
Wickets Lost 82 
Runs For 1445 
Wickets Taken 78 
Runs Against 1575 
Competition Points 212.3 
Position 7 of 8 
 
RND HOME TEAM  AWAY TEAM VENUE 

1 Lane Cove 
9/176(cc)  N Mcleod 43*, K Naqvi 38, 
M Daly 4/24 

def Lindfield 
156  M Sturt 43*, N Sissons 3/26 

Tantallon 

2 Lane Cove 
140  J Plummer 43*, B Easaw 41, B 
Kodiyan 3/24 

def by Burwood 
9/142  S Rous 36, J Osborne 4/25, J 
Carrol 3/22 

Kingsford Smith 

3 Northbridge 
9/116  M Noble 30, M Kingston 4/18, 
P Manoharan 3/8 

def Lane Cove 
115  J Carroll 30*, B Maw 4/23 

Willoughby Park 

4 Lane Cove 
128  N Mcleod 44, B Watkinson 3/33 

def by  Macarthur 
4/131  J Hillman 40*, A Coleman 35* 

Kingsford Smith 

5 Balmain 
109  N Mcleod 3/17 

def by Lane Cove 
2/110  J Plummer 40* 

Jubilee 

6 Epping 
8/212(cc)  A Kumar 48*, D Chan 41*, 
A Nayak 40*, N Mcleod 3/33 

def Lane Cove 
177  K Naqvi 40*, A Nayak 3/27 

Epping 

7 Castle Hill RSL drew Lane Cove Parklands 

8 Lindfield 
6/143  N Osborne 41*, M Sturt 31* 

def Lane Cove 
142  N Mcleod 36, G John 30*, B 
Holland 3/25 

Killara 

9 Lane Cove 
6/185(cc)  K Naqvi 43*, B Easaw 42*, 
Private Player 40*, R Jain 3/28 

def by Northbridge 
8/186  K Deepak 50*, A Greenlees 
40*, S Swami 36*, P Manoharan 3/37 

Kingsford Smith 



 

 

10 Lane Cove 
142  J Carroll 44, A Kumar 4/23 

def by Epping 
249  A Kumar 55, D John 42, D Chan 
41, P Dixit 41 

Kingsford Smith 

11 Lane Cove 
130   

def by Burwood 
4/131  P Parkar 43*, N Fernandes 40* 

Kingsford Smith 

 
Notes: 
Rd 11 – LCCC player scores not recorded in PlayHQ 
 
Masters – Batting 
 
To be completed 
 
 
 
Masters – Bowling 
 
To be completed 
 
 
 
  



 

 

Classics Over 50s Report – 2024/25 
 
The overall results for the 2024/24 season were 4 washouts, 2 wins and 5 losses out of our 11 
games.  The wins were in the first two rounds with a solid win against Ingleburn, and a 
meritorious win with 10 players against the overall competition winner Parramatta. We were 
competitive in all but one of our games, twice making over 200 and also a 199 during the 
season. Unfortunately, both of the last two games were washouts, so we didn’t get the chance 
to celebrate the end of the season in the normal manner. 
 
We had great consistency in the team, with a group of 11 players who played most games. A 
number of our players also played for the Masters team, showing great fitness to be able to 
play every week.  It was great to welcome Gaston Arnolda back from surgery for a couple of 
games at the back end of the season.  Special thanks also to Ron Corby, who filled in on the 
hottest day we played in and bowled his full quota of overs. 
 
Andrew Huszczo was consistently our most economical bowler, well supported by some 
strong performances from Nick Sissons (4/13), Mark MacRae (3/20) and Brian Koks (3/36).  
Shankar Raman again continued to improve throughout the year, with a couple of two for 
performances during the season.  Our leading wicket taker was Nick Sissons with 9 wickets 
at 11.78. 
 
John Marinovich had the highest individual score for the year with 51no. Mark Schaafsma 
was our most consistent batter, reaching 30 (the retirement score) on 4 occasions, with John 
Marinovich and John Plummer also making it twice, and Mark Yates, Andrew Huszczo and 
Julian Magarey getting there once each. Keith Maclaine and Nick Sissons made a number of 
scores in the twenties, and both hit some lovely clean sixes. Our leading run scorer was John 
Marinovich with 175 runs at 29.17, and Mark Schaafsma the highest average with 148 runs at 
49.33. 
 
Our fielding was consistently good, with much enthusiasm from Brian Koks and Nick 
Sissons and consistent wicket keeping from Julian Magarey keeping us going in the field.  
We enjoyed two stunning catches from Keith Maclaine and one from Mark Schaafsma, who 
both belied their years of experience to showcase their skill. 
 
Many thanks to everyone who helped organize the season, particularly Mark Yates our 
manager, Mark McRae our money man and Keith Maclaine for organizing the post-game 
drinks. Whilst the weather wasn’t kind to us this year, we had an enjoyable and social season, 
and we can look forward to the 2025/26 season. 
 
Kim Smith 
2024-25 LCCC Classics Captain 
 
Classics – 2024/25 at a Glance 
 
Played 11 
Won 1st Innings  2 
Drawn 4 
Lost 1st Innings 5 
Wickets Lost 59 
Runs For 1211 



 

 

Wickets Taken 53 
Runs Against 1218 
Competition Points 233.6 
Position 8 of 10 
 
RND HOME TEAM  AWAY TEAM VENUE 

1 Ingleburn RSL 
83  N Sissons 4/13, M McRae 3/20 

def by Lane Cove 
5/155(cc)  M Schaafsma 31* 

Ingleburn 
Memorial 

2 Lane Cove 
7/200  M Schaafsma 35*, J Plummer 
30* 

def Parramatta 
7/196(cc)  P O’Reilly 39*, M Freame 
31*, R Nation 30* 

Kingsford Smith 

3 Ku-ring-gai 
9/183(cc)  B Koks 3/36 

def Lane Cove 
164  J Marinovich 33, M Schaafsma 
31* 

Turramurra 
Memorial 

4 Wenty Leagues 
237  R Raveendran 53, D Chelliah 43*, 
S Pirabhahar 33, N Sissons 3/36 

def Lane Cove 
209  M Schaafsma 33, J Plummer 30*, 
S Pirabhahar 3/34 

Monty Bennett 

5 Lane Cove drew Castle Hill RSL Kingsford Smith 

6 Parramatta 
8/225(cc)  C Batty 44, A Burton 35*, J 
Haldane 34 

def Lane Cove 
9/193(cc)  J Marinovich 51*, A 
Huszczo 32*, P O’Reilly 4/45 

McCredie 

7 Lane Cove drew Balmain Kingsford Smith 

8 Lane Cove 
91  S Sebastian 3/12, B Egerton 3/12 

def by Strathfield 
1/92  S Sebastian 30*, D Gracie 30* 

Kingsford Smith 

9 North Richmond 
8/202  J Bailey 37*, A Driscoll 32*, P 
Dowling 31* 

def Lane Cove 
8/199(cc)  J Magarey 35*, M Yates 32, 
B Beirne 3/35 

Kingsford Smith 

10 Lane Cove drew Burwood Kingsford Smith 

11 Lane Cove drew Ku-ring-gai Kingsford Smith 

 
 
Classics – Batting 
 

Player Mat Inn NO 100s 50s 0s HS Runs Avg Ctch Stmp 
Marinovich, John 7 7 1 0 1 0 51 175 29.17 - - 
Schaafsma, Mark 6 6 3 0 0 0 35 148 49.33 3 - 
Maclaine, Keith 7 7 0 0 0 0 25 129 18.43 2 - 
Smith, Kim 7 7 2 0 0 0 26 96 19.20 2 - 
Yates, Mark 6 6 1 0 0 1 32 94 18.80 - - 
Magarey, Julian 6 6 1 0 0 1 35 90 18.00 1 1 
Sissons, Nick 5 5 1 0 0 1 26 90 22.50 - - 
Plummer, John 4 3 2 0 0 0 30 78 78.00 - - 



 

 

Huszczo, Andrew 7 6 1 0 0 0 32 74 14.80 1 - 
McRae, Mark 5 4 2 0 0 0 15 28 14.00 - - 
Koks, Brian 6 5 0 0 0 1 10 25 5.00 1 - 
Raman, Shankar 6 5 0 0 0 2 9 21 4.20 - - 
Moldrich, Mal 2 2 0 0 0 0 13 14 7.00 1 - 
Corby, Ron 1 1 0 0 0 0 4 4 4.00 1 - 

 
 
Classics – Bowling 
 

Player Mat Ovrs Mdns Wkts Runs 5WI 10WI Avg Best Strike Econ 
Sissons, Nick 5 28.0 ? 9 106 0 0 11.78 4-13 18.67 3.79 
Koks, Brian 6 34.3 ? 6 177 0 0 29.50 3-36 34.50 5.13 
Marinovich, John 7 34.0 ? 6 189 0 0 31.50 2-29 34.00 5.56 
Huszczo, Andrew 7 50.0 ? 6 211 0 0 35.17 2-35 50.00 4.22 
Smith, Kim 7 22.0 ? 5 92 0 0 18.40 2-21 26.40 4.18 
Raman, Shankar 6 25.0 ? 5 164 0 0 32.80 2-25 30.00 6.56 
McRae, Mark 5 34.0 ? 5 169 0 0 33.80 3-20 40.80 4.97 
Corby, Ron 1 8.0 ? 2 50 0 0 25.00 2-50 24.00 6.25 
Yates, Mark 6 1.2 ? 1 11 0 0 11.00 1-5 8.00 8.25 
Moldrich, Mal 2 4.0 ? 1 17 0 0 17.00 1-17 24.00 4.25 

 
 
  



 

 

APPENDIX 
 

CLUB RECORDS 
 

OFFICE BEARERS OF THE CLUB 
 
PRESIDENT: 
 
1904-1919 H.C. Catt 
1919-1937 J.W. Tomlin 
1937-1941 A.B. Campbell 
1941-1948 H.R. Alder 
1948-1961 M.M. Wilson 
1961-1968 J.B. Hollander 
1968-1982 J.F. Dettmann 
1982-1985 A. Harris 
1985-1989 P. Bullock 
1989-1990 B.A. Scott 
1990-1992 P.W. Watkins 
 

1992-1996 B.A. Scott 
1996-1999 I. Green 
1999-2000 A. Kelleher 
2000-2009 J.F. Lloyd 
2009-2010 G. Boyle 
2010-2013 B. Hood 
2013-2019 D. Naughton 
2019-2021 D. Fagan 
2021-     B. Hood 

 
HONORARY SECRETARY: 
 
1904-1908 W.J. Hanley 
1908-1909 C.R. Cornwell 
1909-1912 W.J. Turner 
1912-1914 R.H. Henniker 
1914-1915 G.R. Dettmann 
1915-1919 W.J. Turner 
1919-1922 G.R. Dettman 
1922-1927 C.L. Fox 
1927-1929 J.B. Stack 
1929-1933 E.L. Tyler 
1933-1934 G.R. Dettmann 
1934-1935 A.S. Luke 
1935-1938 G.R. Dettmann 
1938-1940 M.M. Wilson 
1940-1942 J.B. Hollander 
1942-1946 M.M Wilson 
1946-1961 J.B. Hollander 
1961-1966 J.F. Dettmann 
1966-1968 A.R. Emmett 
1968-1970 K.D. Wark 
1970-1973 P.J. Rickey 
1973-1974 A.R. Emmett 
1974-1975 A.C. Cunningham 
1975-1976 A.R. Emmett 

1982-1985 D. Harris 
1985-1986 E. Petrie 
1986-1988 P. Sherwood 
1988-1990 P.W. Watkins 
1990-1991 S. Evershead 
1991-1992 I. Fairall 
1992-1993 B. Bennett 
1993-1995 J. Hill 
1995-1999 I. Fairall 
1999-2000 T. Shilton 
2000-2001 B. Richardson 
2001-2002 C. Granger 
2002-2005 S. Flynn 
2005-2006 G. Sundstrom 
2006-2007 J.D. Harpham 
2007-2009 G. Boyle 
2009-2012 G. Sundstrom 
2012-2013 S. Arudpragasam 
2013-2014 D. Bezer 
2014-2019 J. Rixon 
2019-2020 A. Dowey 
2020-2021 B. Hood 
2021-2024 T. Cottee-Warner 
2024-     M. Schaafsma 



 

 

1976-1978 A.C. Cunningham 
1978-1981 D.C. Magarey 
1981-1982 R.A. Blakeney 
 

 

 
HONORARY TREASURER: 
 
1908-1915 A.B. Campbell 
1915-1937 H.J. Scope 
1937-1940 E.L. Tyler 
1940-1941 J.B. Slack/G. Humphries 
1941-1942 M. Salier 
1942-1946 F.S. Hendy 
1946-1948 J. Dolman 
1948-1961 J. F. Dettmann 
1961-1968 G.S. Pownall 
1968-1969 S.W. Emmett 
1969-1970 I.D. Chalmers 
1970-1973 J. Gilbert 
1973-1974 B. Flemming/J. Goff 
1974-1975 J. Goff 
1975-1978 B.A. Scott 
1978-1982 N. Dettmann 
 

1982-1984 B.A. Scott 
1984-1985 P. Bullock 
1985-1986 D. Harris 
1986-1991 K. Best 
1991-1993 M. Tulich 
1993-1994 M. Staples 
1994-1995 J. Hayes 
1995-2000 G. Imhoff 
2000-2004 J. Sharp 
2004-2005 B. Hood 
2005-2006 J.D. Harpham 
2006-2007 C. Granger 
2008-2013  R. Higgins 
2013-  P. Bakker 

  

 
JUVENILE SECRETARY: 
 
1981-1982 A. Kelleher 
1982-1985 G. Schaper/R.A. Blakeney 
1985-1987 R.A. Blakeney 
1987-1988 J. McCormick 
1988-1990 M. Hood 
1991-1992 P. Watkins 
1995-1998 J. Hayes 
1998-2003 R. Weber 
 

2003-2008  J. Lloyd 
2008-2009  B. Hood 
2009-2011 T. Ryan 
2011-2013 M. Mahoney 
2013-2016 S. Crayn 
2017-2020 D. Barbeler 
 

 



 

 

 
Lane Cove Cricket Club Premierships 

Municipal & Shires 
 

1st GRADE 
1923-24 
1925-26 
1926-27 
1927-28 
1938-39 
1939-40 
1945-46 
2011-12 

2nd GRADE 
1940-41 
1948-49 
1960-61 
1962-63 
1968-69 
1969-70 
1988-89 
2005-06 

 

3rd GRADE 
1969-70 
1970-71 
1973-74 

4th GRADE 
2011-12 

FRANK GRAY 
2006-07 
2024-25 

TIM CREER CUP 

 
  



 

 

 
4000 RUNS 
 
Name: Inn N.O H.S Agg Avge 
J.F. Dettmann 621 52 195 12,995 22.84 
R.M. Metzler 588 102 157 12,375 25.46 
I. Hiddilston 407 34 152* 9,262 24.83 
J.B. Hollander 380 54 148 9,050 27.76 
K. Best 337 57 116 8,109 28.96 
C.A. Burgess 383 16 113 7,260 19.78 
J.F. Lloyd 377 24 158 7,253 20.55 
D. Naughton 303 35 162* 7,916 29.54 
S.A. Butcher 279 19 169 6,181 23.77 
B. Hood 285 36 225 5,844 23.47 
J.K. French 317 33 99 5,801 20.43 
A.B. Campbell 153 24 177 5,335 41.36 
P.K. Fitzgerald 257 27 145 5,172 22.49 
T. Beattie 226 29 152* 5,079 25.78 
G. Samuelson 264 18 118 4,584 18.63 
B.C. Wall 159 11 188 4,473 30.22 
C. McKay 228 20 114* 4,296 20.65 
D. Treweek 217 30 105 4,229 22.61 
H. Simmons 177 12 142 4,160 25.21 
C. Granger 
A. Southcott 

210 
199 

22 
17 

144 
  124* 

4,111 
4,189 

21.87 
23.02 

 
400 WICKETS 
 
Name: Overs Maidens Runs Wickets Avge 
B.A. Scott 7,024 1,510 22,139 1,214 19.39 
J.F. Dettmann 3,608 338  14,752 1,011 14.59 
J. Dolman 2,539 268 8,665 836 10.36 
G.R. Dettmann 2,303 236 9,395 738 12.73 
A.C. Cunningham 2,012 198 8,647 528 16.38 
H. Kallas 2,350 583 7,641 507 15.07 
T. Cunningham 1,839 272 6,580  471 13.97 
P. Preston 2,293 403 7,469 464 16.10 
B. Richardson 2,494.5 368 8,373 446 18.77 
R.E. Pym Snr 1,580 213 6,098 420 14.52 
T. Holt 2,183 410 7,097 415 17.10 
P. Wilson 1,738 268 7,422 414 17.93 
      

  



 

 

 
50 DISMISSALS BY A WICKETKEEPER 
 
Name: Caught Stumped Total 
A. Emmett 110 49 159 
K. Wark 108 49 157 
P. Ginns 125 18 143 
J.N. Harpham 114 7 121 
G. Moorhead 108 10 118 
K. Best 104 11 115 
S. Flynn 93 21 113 
R. Frazer 76 26 102 
P.J. Fitzgerald 85 16 101 
P.K. Fitzgerald 86 15 101 
A. Kelleher 104 1 105 
A. Maxwell 82 14 96 
S. Willoughby 90 18 108 
P. Brett 99 3 102 
T. Naughton 102 10 112 
A. Arkey 61 18 79 
D.R. Magarey 55 6 61 
J. Gray 50 10 60 
P. Mees 49 10 59 
H.J. Clark 
M. Dodds  

26 
68 

27 
3 

53 
71 

 
 
MOST RUNS IN A SEASON 
 
A.B. Campbell  1,012 runs  1923-24 

  
 
MOST WICKETS IN A SEASON 
 
G.R. Dettmann 106 wickets 1930-31 

 
 
HIGHEST INDIVIDUAL SCORE 
 
B Hood 225 runs, 5th Grade 1996-97 
P Cross 202*, 1st Grade 2008-09 

 
 
MOST RUNS IN “A” SHIRE 
 

 Inn NO HS Agg Average 
J B Hollander  371 53 148 8,723 27.43 

 
CENTURY IN EACH INNINGS OF A MATCH 
 
A B Campbell  104 not out and 103 not out 1931-32 



 

 

 
 
HIGHEST TOTAL BY A TEAM 
 
A Shire vs Epping 602 runs 1936-37 

 
RECORD PARTNERSHIP 
 
D C Reid (165) and C L Fox (163) 276 runs 1925-26 

 
MOST DISMISSALS BY A WICKETKEEPER IN A SEASON 
 
A. Kelleher – 40 1997-98 

 
MOST CATHCHES BY A FIELDSMAN 
 
C Burgess 17 catches C Shire 1963-64 
J  R Mullins 18 catches C & S  1966-67 
D Naughton 25 catches 1st Grade & U24’s 2004-05 

 
MOST CENTURIES IN A SEASON 
 
I Russell  5 A Shire 1965-66 

 
RECORD PARTNERSHIPS CLUB 
 

� Denotes not out / unbroken 
 
1st 273 M Punch 175 A Southcott 124* 2004-05 
2nd 276 D Reid 165 C Fox 163 1925-26 
3rd 186 R Huxley 112 A Harris 94 2001-02 
4th 256* P Sherwood 161* J Pym 107* 1984-85 
5th 263 J Hollander 148 R Metzler 138 1956-57 
6th 199 B Arnall 139 A Maxwell 120 2011-12 
7th 205 T Beattie 152* T Cunningham 72 1967-68 
8th 129 R Metzler 88 E Browne 55 1954-55 
9th 

  
111 
 

A Maxwell 
D Naughton  

167 
110* 

S Willoughby 
J Scarcella 

22 
65* 

2005-06 
2018-19 

10th 112 P Wilson 73 W Sinclair 26* 1966-67 
 
RECORD PARTNERSHIPS IN A SHIRE 
 
1st 221 A Murphy 122 K Best 103* 1984-85 
2nd 276 D Reid 165 C Fox 163 1925-26 
3rd 186 R Huxley 112 A Harris 94 2001-02 
4th 256* P Sherwood 161* J Pym 107* 1984-85 
5th 263 J Hollander 148 R Metzler 138 1956-57 
6th 154 C Mandleberg 97 E Galek 80 2017-18 
7th 148* T Beattie 91* P Wilson 59* 1970-71 
8th 129 R Metzler 88 E Browne 55 1954-55 
9th 111 D Naughton 110* J Scarcella 65* 2018-19 



 

 

10th 112 P Wilson 73 W Sinclair 26* 1966-67 
       

RECORD PARTNERSHIPS IN B SHIRE 
1st 273 M Punch 175 A Southcott 124* 2004-05 
2nd 174 C McKay 113 I Davidson 78 2004-05 
3rd 159 P Flemming 101 P Ginns 59* 1991-92 
4th 134 B Fleming 129* I Coupland 45 1972-73 
5th 149 J Colgan 102 J Pogonoski 63 1996-97 
6th 136 G Wark 75 J Dettmann 51 1969-70 
7th 205 T Beattie 152* T Cunningham 72 1967-68 
8th   89 P Ginns 56 M Mitchell 68* 1991-92 
9th 105* M Stone 68* C Robertson 43* 2004-05 
10th   95 J Scarcella 100* N Absalom 14 2011-12 

 
RECORD PARTNERSHIPS IN C SHIRE 
1st 193 J Lloyd 158 J Lees 66 2002-03 
2nd 202 J Lloyd 126 A Krishnaswamy 85 2002-03 
3rd 149 P Rickey 92 S Edwards 54 1969-70 
4th 207* G Breusch 116* A Kelleher 100* 1980-81 
5th 178 T Beattie 125* N Dettmann 66 1979-80 
6th 153 C Burgess 113 P Rickey 54 1964-65 
7th 179 A Cornelius 151* P Sinclair 44* 2014-15 
8th   81 P Sherwood 90 R Chard 18* 1973-74 
9th 111 A Maxwell 167 S Willoughby 22 2005-06 
10th   77 N.Trumbull 69* L.Putnam-Gray 33 2009-10 

 
RECORD PARTNERSHIPS D SHIRE 
1st 149 P Miller 151 B Knowles 20 1984-85 
2nd 103 J.Lloyd 88 O.Fisher 64 2007-08 
3rd 178 K Clarke 120 G Scott   103* 2006-07 
4th 162 B McVicar 103 R Maclaine    52* 1984-85 
5th 195* B Dibden   102* A Vaughan   101* 2002-03 
6th 199 B Arnall 139 A Maxwell 120 2011-12 
7th 163 J Lloyd 95 P Tompsett 75 2008-09 
8th 125 S Matheson 125* C Hipkin 87 2017-18 
9th   88 S Matheson 125* S Barrett   33 2017-18 
10th   69 R Metzler   77* A Szabo 44 1982-83 

 
RECORD PARTNERSHIPS FRANK GRAY SHIELD 
1st 153* G Sundstrom   78* M Mackenzie   49* 2003-04 
2nd   110 F Boys 100 O Lee-Young 35 2018-19 
3rd 142 M Mackenzie 64 D Naughton 77 2006-07 
4th 125 P Nirmalendran 54 J Rixon 109 2012-13 
5th   67 P Brett 

T Bristow 
93 
85* 

J Bates 
N Kelland 

27 
85 

2006-07 
2017-18 

6th 116* J Bates   73* A Maxwell   38* 2006-07 
7th   52 O Zannino 31 D Gribben 14 2014-15 
8th   78 S Dunn 

J Standing 
90 
45 

P Sinclair 
S Willoughby 

21 
18 

2009-10 
2010-11 

9th   56 S Dunn 90 L Putnam-Gray 25 2009-10 



 

 

10th   31 A Cornelius  17* C Hipkin 15 2014-15 
 
  



 

 

 
HAT TRICKS 
These do not appear to have been recorded before 1930 but since then are: 
 
G R Dettmann A Shire 1935-36 
J N Campbell A Shire 1939-40 
J F Dettmann (twice) B Shire 1940-41 
J Norton B Shire 1940-41 
J M Emmingham C & S 1946-47 
W Magson B Shire 1946-47 
J F Dettmann A Shire 1948-49 
J Dolman (twice) A Shire 1948-49 
F Manc C & S 1949-50 
J F Dettmann A Shire 1951-52 
B Ames Gordon B 1953-54 
R E Pym (Snr) B Shire 1955-56 
G Lind Gordon A 1955-56 
A Cunningham B Shire 1956-57 
W Duff A Shire 1956-57 
J Currie B Shire 1956-57 
R Hinwood B Shire 1957-58 
W Duff A Shire 1957-58 
H Kallas B Shire 1960-61 
P Chilton C & S 1961-62 
J F Dettmann B Shire 1962-63 
J R Mullins C & S 1962-63 
H Garvan C & S 1962-63 
T Cunningham A Shire  1963-64 
E B Miles C & S 1964-65 
B Temple-Smith C & S 1964-65 
T Beattie A Shire 1966-67 
J Blaikie A Shire 1966-67 
T Cunningham B Shire 1966-67 
D Jones C Shire 1966-67 
S Edwards Gordon A 1967-68 
P Wilson A Shire 1969-70 
J McIlwraith Gordon A 1970-71 
T Beattie A Shire 1970-71 
K Olliver C & S 1971-72 
H Kallas A Shire 1972-73 
L Carter C Shire 1975-76 
H Kallas A Shire 1976-77 
D Harris B Shire 1980-81 
B McVicar A Shire 1981-82 
B McVicar D Shire 1984-85 
J Wallace D Shire 1991-92 
M Skipper 4th Grade 1995-96 
A Dodds 4th Grade 2002-03 
I Davidson 2nd Grade 2004-05 
O Fisher 4th Grade 2004-05 



 

 

C Robertson 3rd Grade                                   2006-07 
I Davidson 2nd Grade 2009-10 
P Nirmalendran 2nd Grade 2012-13 

 
K Dindayal 2nd Grade 2017-18 

 
The hat tricks by J F Dettmann in 1951-52 against Burwood (6 for 3) and 1962-63 against 
Sutherland (8 for 24) and in 1969-70 by P Wilson against Roseville consisted of four wickets 
with successive balls. 
 
The hat tricks by J F Dettmann and “Peter” Norton in 1940-41 were in the same innings. 
 
 
500 RUNS IN A SEASON 
 
1923-24 A B Campbell 1012 1964-65 J Dettmann 535 
1924-25 A B Campbell 582 1964-65 R Metzler 511 
1925-26 C L Fox 658 1964-65 I Russell 527 
1926-27 D C Reid 658 1965-66 I Russell 816 
1926-27 A Campbell 654 1965-66 J French 517 
1926-27 N V Smith 607 1966-67 I Russell 607 
1927-28 A B Campbell 616 1966-67 R Metzler 626 
1927-28 L Jacob 577 1966-67 J Goff 513 
1928-29 S A Butcher 603 1967-68 J French 593 
1930-31 A B Campbell 721 1967-68 I Russell 509 
1931-32 A B Campbell 665 1968-69 I Russell 633 
1932-33 B C Sheidow 507 1968-69 L Frankish 501 
1932-33 B C Wall 558 1970-71 P Fitzgerald 544 
1933-34 H Simmons 757 1977-78 K Best 590 
1934-35 B C Wall 612 1980-81 F Paterson 524 
1935-36 H R Alder 503 1980-81 G Breusch 610 
1936-37 B C Wall 662 1984-85 B McVicar 751 
1937-38 G Andrews 607 1984-85 J Pym 621 
1940-41 J F Dettmann 698 1984-85 K Best 578 
1942-43 M Salier 659 1986-87 D McLean 662 
1942-43 B C Wall 503 1988-89 D Stepto 542 
1947-48 J B Hollander 513 1990-91 R McEvilly 512 
1949-50 J F Dettmann 648 1992-93 G Easy 565 
1951-52 I Hiddilston 539 1993-94 A Kelleher 533 
1952-53 R M Metzler 647 1993-94 D Johnson 526 
1952-53 J B Hollander 517 1993-94 H Macdonald 569 
1953-54 R M Metzler 693 1997-98 C Wiseman 651 
1955-56 J B Hollander 513 1997-98 C Granger 505 
1955-56 G Haddon 579 2001-02 D Naughton 527 
1956-57 I Hiddilston 517 2002-03 J Lloyd 603 
1956-57 J B Hollander 742 2004-05 D Naughton 535 
1957-58 I Hiddilston 649 2005-06 C Granger 542 
1957-58 J Dettmann 507 2005-06 D Naughton 535 
1957-58 C Burgess 617 2005-06 A Maxwell 512 
1958-59 I Hiddilston 631 2006-07 C Granger 583 



 

 

1960-61 R Metzler 571 2007-08 P Cross 633 
1961-62 R Metzler 508 2008-09 P Cross 637 
1962-63 I Hiddilston 584 2008-09 B Hood 637 
1962-63 J Potter 698 2008-09 A Southcott 517 
1962-63 I Hiddilston 582 2010-11 R Gallichan 680 
1964-65 B Gunn 654 2012-13 D. Naughton 524 
   2017-18 T. Bristow 517 

 
300 RUNS IN A FRANK GRAY SEASON 
 
2004-05 D Naughton 376  
2005-06 P Brett 311  
2006-07 D Naughton 535 Frank Gray Shires Record 

 
 
50 WICKETS IN A SEASON 
 
1923-24 G R Dettmann 80 1949-50 J Dettmann 57 
1923-24 L Bloomfield 65 1949-50 J Dolman 75 
1923-24 H Scope 55 1950-51 J Dolman 79 
1924-25 N H Fox 54 1951-52 J Dolman 70 
1924-25 H W Fraser 63 1951-52 J Dettmann 55 
1924-25 G R Dettmann 56 1952-53 J Dolman 50 
1927-28 G R Dettmann 63 1953-54 R Hinwood 50 
1927-28 L Jacob 70 1956-57 R Hinwood 50 
1928-29 G R Dettmann 66 1957-58 R Hinwood 54 
1930-31 G R Dettmann 106 1957-58 W Duff 50 
1930-31 W Grant 50 1958-59 A Cunningham 50 
1930-31 A Murray 56 1961-62 W Duff 50 
1931-32 C Murray 64 1966-67 R Pym (Jnr) 50 
1932-33 G R Dettmann 65 1966-67 P Wilson 54 
1932-33 C Murray 62 1967-68 P Wilson 62 
1933-34 A McClintock 51 1969-70 P Wilson 59 
1934-35 R Potts 51 1969-70 T Cunningham 69 
1935-36 G R Dettmann 91 1975-76 M Fitzgerald 60 
1935-36 R Butcher 56 1975-76 A Harris 55 
1938-39 J Campbell 95 1976-77 A Cartwright 51 
1938-39 J Dolman 53 1976-77 W Massey 50 
1939-40 J Campbell 95 1977-78 B Scott 50 
1940-41 J F Dettmann 69 1984-85 B McVicar 70 
1940-41 J H Norton 51 1997-98 C Wiseman 50 
1940-41 F S Hendy 68 1999-2000 T Holt 52 
1945-46 J Dolman 70 2002-03 P Cruden 50 
1945-46 J Dolman 63 2002-03 S Lees 53 
1948-49 J Dettmann 62 2012-13 C Bezer 54 
   2017-18 L. O’Hare 53 

 
20 WICKETS IN A FRANK GRAY SEASON 
 
2004-05 B Richardson 22  



 

 

2004-05 T Holt 20  
2006-07 M Mackenzie 29 Frank Gray Shires Record 

 
  



 

 

 
BEST BOWLING 
There have been 94 recorded instances of bowlers taking seven wickets in an innings.  Of these, 
the best were Lionel Bloomfield (7-7 in 1923-24), Bruce Ames (7-9 in 1953-54) and Dick Pym 
(7-19 twice in one game in 1965-66) and Ian Fairall (7-27 in 1990-91 & 7-9 in 1994-95). 
 
10 WICKETS IN AN INNINGS 
H J Scope 10 for 21 C & S 1917-18 

 
9 WICKETS IN AN INNINGS 
W Duff 9 for 31 B Shire 1961-62 
W Bryan 9 for 17  B Shire 1957-58 
I Nash 9 for 27 D Shire 1995-96 
T Holt 9 for 54 1st Grade 2002-03 

 
8 WICKETS IN AN INNINGS 
A Jenkins 8 for 16 A Shire 2017-18 
B C Wall 8 for 65 A Shire 1933-34 
G Andrews 8 for 38 B Shire 1933-34 
G R Dettmann 8 for 19 A Shire 1935-36 
G Starke 8 for 50 A Shire 1935-36 
G R Dettmann 8 for 63 A Shire 1935-36 
G R Dettmann 8 for 37 A Shire 1935-36 
R E Pym 8 for 17 Gordon A 1954-55 
G Lind 8 for 30 Gordon A 1955-56 
J Mottee 8 for 68 B Shire 1955-56 
P Fellows 8 for 25 A Shire 1960-61 
J F Dettmann 8 for 24 B Shire 1962-63 
G Dawson 8 for 65 C Shire 1966-67 
P Wilson 8 for 79 A Shire 1966-67 
P Wilson 8 for 38 A Shire 1969-70 
P Wilson 8 for 80 A Shire 1969-70 
W Edwards 8 for 32 Gordon A 1969-70 
K Chard 8 for 42 C Shire 1972-73 
T Dagg 8 for 66 C Shire 1972-73 
T Cunningham 8 for 53 C Shire 1973-74 
D Eade 8 for 38 C & S 1974-75 
K Birdsall 8 for 17 C Shire 1975-76 
J Jeffrey 8 for 63 C Shire 1975-76 
J H Dettmann 8 for 45 C Shire 1975-76 
D Eade 8 for 22 C & S 1975-76 
D Eade 8 for 40 C & S 1975-76 
R Massey 8 for 67 C Shire 1976-77 
B Scott 8 for 40 C Shire 1977-78 
H Kallas 8 for 58 A Shire 1978-79 
K Chard 8 for 48 C Shire 1979-80 
R Bruun 8 for 59 C Shire 1985-86 
B Bennett 8 for 48 B Shire 1990-91 
A Hejtmanek 8 for 36 D Shire 1991-92 
G Sanderson 8 for 52 Gordon C Grade 1996-97 
S Lees 8 for 43 D Shire 2002-03 



 

 

M Mackenzie 8 for 32 U24s 2006-07 
J Scarcella 8 for 51 A Shire 2014-15 

 
13 OR MORE WICKETS IN A MATCH 
 
R E Pym (Snr) 14 for 38 C Shire 1965-66 
H J Scope 14 for 41 A Shire  1923-24 
B Scott 14 for 100 C Shire 1977-78 
G. Sanderson 14 for ? 5th Grade GDJCA 1996-97 
K Chard 13 for 13 C Shire  1972-73 
A Chapman 13 for 74 Gordon Juniors 1965-66 
A Hejtmanek 13 for 93 D Shire 1991-92 
G Sanderson 14 for 98 Gordon C Grade 1996-97 
T Holt 13 for 89 A Shire 2002-03 

 
BATSMEN WHO HAVE BATTED THROUGH INNINGS 
 
1923-24 C.L. Fox  (B) 79* v Lane Cove A 
1931-32 A.B. Campbell (A) 104* v Western Suburbs 
1931-32 H. Simmons (B) 104* v Balmain 
1933-34 A.B. Campbell (A) 115* v Burwood 
1936-37 H. Simmons (A) 112* v Ryde 
1995-96 A. Ashe (D) 48* v Auburn 
2009-10 
2013-14                

A. Southcott 
R. McElduff 

2nd  
3rd  

66* 
28* 

v Macquarie Uni 
v Georges River 

 
MORE THAN 50 CATCHES (EXCLUDING WICKET KEEPING) 
Before 1948-49 these were not recorded and since then, in some years, the catching statistics 
have been omitted from team records. The following figures show the number of catches 
actually credited to each player, the figures in the middle column being the number of seasons 
in which the players played but for which no catching record is available. 
 
JF Dettmann 13 149 G Pownall 2 63 
D Naughton 0 190 J Hill 1 62 
RM Metzler 6 141 R McIlwraith 1 62 
BA Scott ? 130 H Kallas 2 61 
I Hiddilston 11 125 C McKay 0 63 
JF Lloyd 0 121 JB Hollander 11 60 
JR Mullins 7 114 B Richardson 0 65 
CA Burgess 6 105 A Southcott 0 63 
L Arambewela 0 102 I Davidson 0 61 
T Cunningham 1 94 H Garvan 7 58 
P Preston 2 91 K Chard 0 58 
A Cunningham 3 89 S Myers 0 57 
JH Dettman 0 88 G Schaper 0 58 
T Holt 0 92 D Treweek 0 58 
K Best 0 86 P Wilson 2 57 
JK French 4  85 G Cornelius 0 56 
B Hood ? 85 D Harris 0 56 
G Sundstrom 0 77 G Humphries 0 56 
T Beattie 1 75 R Rickey 0 56 



 

 

A Cartwright 0 71 G Samuelson 5 54 
T Pearce 2 69 J Goff 1 53 
I Russell 1 66 C Granger 0 51 
P Rickey 0 64 G Boyle 

J Camarsh 
 

0 
0 
 

51 
63 
 

BATSMEN WHO HAVE SCORED 150 IN AN INNINGS 
 
B Hood 5th 225 
P Cross 1st Grade 202* 
B McVicar D 197 
J F Dettmann B 195 
K Levy GA 189 
B C Wall A 188 
A B Campbell A 177 
D Johnson C 176 
M Punch 2nd Grade 175 
S A Butcher A 169 
I Russell A 167 
A Maxwell 3rd Grade 167 
H MacDonald GC 166 
D C Reid B 165 
H Van Heerdon 2nd Grade 164* 
C L Fox B 163 
D Naughton 1st Grade 162* 
P Sherwood A 161* 
S Williams C 161* 
J Lloyd C 158 
R M Metzler B 157 
B C Wall A 155 
D C Redi A 154 
J F Dettmann B 153* 
I Hiddilston A 152* 
I Russell A 152* 
T Beattie A 152* 
A Cornelius 3rd Grade 151* 
R M Metzler A 151 
P Miller D 151 
B Hood 4th Grade 150* 

 
TEAM SCORES OVER 400 
 
1936-37 A v Epping 602 (180 minutes) 
1927-28 A v St George 474  
1931-32 B v Ryde 430  
1936-37 B v N Districts 410 (9 wickets) 
2002-03 C v S Districts 402 (4 wickets) 
2004-05 2nd v Lindfield 406 (4 wickets) 

 
FASTEST CENTURIES 
 



 

 

1948-49 M Wilson CS 100 v Barker Old Boys 28 minutes 
1952-53 C A Burgess WK 106 v Wanderers 36 minutes 
2006-07 D Naughton 1st        100* v Georges River 34 balls 

 
 
 
BATSMEN WHO HAVE SCORED 1,000 RUNS IN A SEASON 
 
1920-21 A B Campbell CS 1031 
1923-24 A B Campbell A 1012 

 
25 OR MORE DISMISSALS IN A SEASON BY A WICKET-KEEPER 
 
Date Name Grade Catches Stumpings Dismissals 
2017-18 M Dodds 1st / U24 47 3 50 
2006-07 T Naughton 1st / U24 38 6 44 
1997-98 A Kelleher 1st 40 0 40 
1995-96 P Fleming 1st/2nd 30 2 32 
2002-03 P Brett 1st/ 2nd/ U24 29 1 30 
1996-97 A Kelleher 1st 29 0 29 
2001-02 S Flynn 1st/2nd/U24  26 3 29 
2005-06 T Naughton 2nd/3rd/4th/U24 28 1 29 
1971-72 P K Fitzgerald A 21 7 28 
2004-05 
2018-19 

P Brett 
L Hume 

1st/U24 
2nd 

27 
20 

1 
8 

28 
28 

1951-52 R McGrath A 17 10 27 
1991-92 S Corcoran D 21 5 26 
1972-73 P K Fitzgerald A 23 3 26 
1996-97 G Moorhead 4th 25 1 26 
1995-96 G Moorhead 4th 25 1 26 
2003-04 P Brett 1st/ U24 25 1 26 
2011-12 JN Harpham 1st 25 1 26 
1931-32 G Shaw A 12 13 25 
1983-84 K Best A 20 5 25 
1993-94 P Rayner GC 21 4 25 
2008-09 S Willoughby 2nd / 3rd 20 5 25 
2012-13 
 

P Mees 2nd 24 1 25 

 
INDIVIDUAL CENTURIES 
Since the beginning of the Shires competition in the 1923-24 season 262 have been recorded. 
In the following list, the legend is: 
 

A (1st) Shire  (A) (1st)  Gordon District A Grade  (GA) 
B (2nd) Shire   (B) (2nd)  Gordon District B Grade  (GB) 
C (3rd) Shire  I (3rd)   Gordon District B Reserve Grade (GBR) 
D (4th) Shire   (D) (4th)  Gordon District C Grade  (GC) 
TCC (5th) Shire – Tim Creer Cup  Willoughby-Kurringgai Assoc. (WK) 
      Northern Suburbs Cricket Assoc. (N) 
      City & Suburban   (CS) 
      Not Out    * 



 

 

1923-24    
A B Campbell A 177 v Gordon 
A B Campbell A 151  
C L Fox A 140  
A B Campbell A 100 v Gordon 
C L Turner B 124 v Petersham 
    
1924-25    
A B Campbell A 123*  
D C Reid A 107  
A Collins B 108  
    
1925-26    
H J Scope A 110  
D Chidgey A 108*  
D C Reid B 165  
C L Fox B 163  
R Brodie B 141  
    
1926-27    
D C Reid A 154  
A B Campbell B 113  
H J Scope B 113  
    
1927-28    
H Buckley A 133*  
A B Campbell A 131  
R Brodie A 102*  
L Jacob B 115  
N Smith B 108  
    
1929-30    
C L Turner A 115  
L J Tayler B  117*  
    

 
    
    
1930-31    
B C Sheidow A  109* v Petersham 
A B Campbell A  112* v Waverley 
B C Sheidow A 127 v Gordon 
A B Campbell A 106  
H F Simmons B 102  
    
1931-32    
A B Campbell A 104* v Western Suburbs 
A B Campbell A 103* v Western Suburbs 
H F Simmons B 104* v Balmain 
F Tomlin B 103* v Ryde 



 

 

L J Tayler A 117 v Glebe 
H R Alder A 104 v North Districts 
F Tomlin B 119 v Ryde 
    
1932-33    
L J Tayler A 104 v North Districts 
S A Butcher A 103 v St George 
H F Simmons B 107 v Ryde 
    
1933-34    
B C Wall A 155 v Ryde 
B C Wall A 132 v St George 
A B Campbell A 115* v Burwood 
H F Simmons B 142 v Balmain 
C F Rowley B 120 v Balmain 
H F Simmons B 119 v North Districts 
H F Simmons B 116 v St George 
H F Simmons B 102 v Mosman 
    
1934-35    
B C Wall A 118 v St George 
B C Wall A   101*  
N Henniker B 103  
    
1935-36    
H R Alder A 137 v Randwick 
    
1936-37    
B C Wall A 188 v Epping 
S A Butcher A 169  
F A Limbert A 142 v Epping 
H F Simmons A   112* v Ryde 
B C Wall A 108 v Epping 
A F M Pratt A 104 v Epping 
E Burge B   127*  
C F Rowley B   114*  
G Stalgis B 100  
    
1937-38    
V Taylor B 106 v Lindfield 
G Andrews B 106 v Lindfield 
V Taylor B 105 v Lindfield 
G Andrews B 104  
N Fisher B 100  
    
1938-39    
B C Wall A 101  
    
1939-40    
J B Hollander A 136  



 

 

E Burge A 124  
E Burge A 103  
H F Simmons A 100  
    
1940-41    
J F Dettmann B 195 v Ryde 
J F Dettmann B 126 v Epping 
J F Dettmann B 105 v Manly 
    
1941-42    
I Hiddilston A 100* v Epping 
    
1943-44    
M Saliera A 100*  
S A Butcher A 100*  
    
1946-47    
F Loughlan B 107* v Lindfield 
A Drewitt-Smith B 100* v University 
J Fox CS 108* v Old Aloysians 
    
1948-49    
H R Thorton B   125* v Epping 
H R Thorton B 107 v Burwood 
S A Butcher CS 113  
M Wilson CS 100 v Barker Old Boys 

 
1949-50    
S M Dunn A 145 v Roseville 
J F Dettmann A 104 v Roseville 
A Fellows B   139* v Lindfield 
A Leggatt B 114 v Lindfield 
    
1950-51    
J B Hollander A 118 v Roseville 
    
    
    
1951-52    
J B Hollander A 138  
R M Metzler WK 112 v Roseville 
R M Metzler WK 106 v Artarmon Vets 
    
1952-53    
C A Burgess WK 106 v Wanderers 
L Clark WK 106 v Chatswood 
    
1953-54    
M Jones B 128 v Ryde 
R M Metzler GA 114 v Artarmon Vets 



 

 

R M Metzler GA 108 v Roseville 
R M Metzler GA 107 v Wanderers 
    
1954-55    
G Haddon GA 107 v Methodists 
B Ames N 101 v Clifton 
    
1955-56    
R M Metzler A 114 v Sutherland 
J B Hollander A 109 v Ryde 
J B Hollander A 101 v Lindfield 
F Dew B   134* v Ryde 
G Haddon GA   101*  
    
1956-57    
I Hiddilston A 152* v Roseville 
J B Hollander A 148 v Roseville 
R M Metzler A 138 v Roseville 
J F Dettmann A 102 v Bexley 
J B Hollander A   100* v Roseville 
A Willis B 101 v Auburn 
R M Metzler A 151 v Roseville 

 
1957-58     
I Hiddilston A 114 v Burwood 
I Hiddilston A   111* v Canterbury 
C A Burgess B 106 v Canterbury 
    
1958-59    
P K Fitzgerald A 145 v Roseville 
I Hiddilston A 125 v Burwood 
J F Dettmann A   103* v Uni Technology 
    
1959-60    
J F Dettmann B   153* v Pennant Hills 
R M Metzler B 125 v Bexley 
G S Pownall B 118 v Sutherland 
    
1960-61    
G Samuelson A 126 v Canterbury 
P K Fitzgerald A 120 v Sutherland 
R A Potts B   114* v Sutherland 
R M Metzler B 108 v Epping 
R M Metzler B   100* v Ryde 
I Hiddilston A 102 v Ryde 
M Samuelson B 112 v Canterbury 
R A Potts B 109 v Ryde 
    
1962-63    
J G Potter A 112 v Burwood 



 

 

J G Potter A 106 v Epping 
J A Ward A   103* v Pennant Hills 
B Gunn A 101 v Auburn 
R A Jones B 123 v Bexley 
R M Metzler B 105 v Ryde 
R A Jones B 100* v Auburn 
    
1963-64    
I Hiddilston A 116 v Ryde 
I Hiddilston A 108 v Canterbury 
M Samuelson B 104 v Canterbury 
J F Dettmann B   102* v Roseville 
B Andrews CS   111* v Willoughby 
    
1964-65    
I Hiddilston A 123 v Roseville 
B Gunn A 117 v Sutherland 
P Wilson A 113 v Ryde 
B Gunn A 112 v Bexley 
B Gunn A  102* v Epping 
B Gunn A 101 v Lindfield 
J F Dettmann B 143 v Bexley 
D Field B 132 v Lindfield 
C A Burgess C 113 v Epping 

 
1965-66    
R Radford A 118 v Auburn 
I Russell A 137 v Ryde 
I Russell A   125* v Pennant Hills 
I Russell A 108 v Bexley 
I Russell A 106 v Sutherland 
I Russell A 102 v Lindfield 
K Levy GA 189 v Mosman 
I Chalmers GA 103 v Roseville 
J K French CS   100* v Manly Vets 
    
    
    
1966-67    
I Russell A 167 v Roseville 
R M Metzler B 157 v Epping 
R Radford B 125 v Auburn 
S Follington CS 137 v Manly Vets 
A Cutler CS 110 v Manly Vets 
G Wark CS 103 v Uni of NSW 
    
1967-68    
T Beattie A   152* v Sutherland 
C A Burgess B 103 v Ryde 
P Rickey C 100 v Manly 



 

 

J Goff GA 141 v Artarmon Vets 
R Radford CS 108 v Mosman 
    
1968-69    
I Russell A 119 v Pennant Hills 
I Russell A 110 v Roseville 
L Frankish B 103 v Uni of NSW 
    
1969-70 
P McCann A 104 v Auburn 
R Radford B 124 v Burwood 
G Wark B 100 v Roseville 
P McCann C   113* v Epping 
    
1970-71    
P McCann A 102 V Lindfield 
T Pearce A 106 v Burwood 
T Beattie A 103 v Epping 
R McIlwraith A   101* v Ryde 
    
1972-73    
B Fleming B 129* v Epping 
R Rickey B 113* v Epping 
P K Fitzgerald CS 104 v Waverley 
 
1973-74    
R Rickey A 131 v Canterbury 
T Beattie A 102 v Pennant Hills 
    
1977-78    
C Logan A 111 v Wentworthville 
K Best A 101 v Bexley 
T Pearce B 106 v Lindfield 
A Swan C 124 v South Districts 
G Ball C   101* v Lindfield 
    
1978-79    
P J Fitzgerald 
 

A 119* v Macquarie Uni 

1979-80    
A O’Neill B 103* v Roseville 
T Beattie C 125* v Canterbury 
    
1980-81    
F Paterson A   125* v Bexley 
F Paterson A 109 v Macquarie Uni 
F Paterson A   105* v Lindfield 
R Howard B 108 v Pennant Hills 
M Scully C   104* v Warringah 
G Breusch C   116* v Canterbury 



 

 

A Kelleher C   100* v Canterbury 
    
1981-82   
R Maclaine A 101 v Macquarie Uni 
A O’Neill A  100* v Canterbury 
M Mitchell B 109 v Epping 
J Matthews A 114 v Wentworthville 
J Pym A 104 v Bexley 
    
1983-84    
S Ross B 100* v Macquarie Uni 
D Treweek C 104 v Lindfield 
    
1984-85    
P Sherwood A   161* v Pennant Hills 
A Murphy A 122 v Canterbury 
A Murphy A   114* v Lindfield 
J Pym A   107* v Pennant Hills 
K Best A   103* v Canterbury 
J Pym A   102* v Epping 
M Scully C 127 v Epping 
B McVicar D 197 v Auburn 
P Miller D 151 v Baulkham Hills 
B McVicar D 113 v Epping 
B McVicar D 103 v Epping 
    
1985-86    
R McEvilly B 118 v Macquarie Uni 
    
1986-87    
D McLean A 135 v Roseville 
K Best A 116 v Strathfield 
S Ross B   128* v Canterbury 
S Williams C   161* v Lindfield 
D McLean D   131* v Epping 
    
1987-88    
J McCormick D 109 v Epping 
    
1988-89    
J Howarth B   107* v Bexley 
D Stepto B   103* v Pennant Hills 
D Stepto B 103 v Lindfield 
D Stepto B  102 v Bexley 
    
1989-90 
J Marinovich C 100 v Strathfield 
    
1990-91    
L Della A 130 v Canterbury 



 

 

D McLean A 127 v Epping 
A McLean B   104* v Lindfield 
B Bennett B 102 v Strathfield 
K Buckley C   106* v Epping 
D Treweek C   100* v Pennant Hills 
P K Fitzgerald D   100* v Strathfield 
    
1991-92    
S Roberts A 100 v Canterbury 
P Lloyd B   131* v Roseville 
P Dodd B 111 v Baulkham Hills 
P Flemming B 101 v Strathfield 
K Phillips D 123 v Pennant Hills 
    
1992-93    
P Campbell A 131 v Pennant Hills 
K Best A   102* v Lindfield 
P Campbell A 101 v Baulkham Hills 
M Tulich C 115 v Pennant Hills 

 
1993-94    
A Kelleher A 143 v Holroyd 
D McLean A 101 v Auburn 
D Johnson C 176  
A Roberts C   103*  
D Johnson C 101  
D Treweek D 105  
A Love D 103  
G Easy D 101  
R Gobee D 100  
H McDonald GC 166 v Lindfield 
H McDonald GC 101 v Hackers 
 
1994-95 

   

J Lloyd B 129 v Auburn 
P Flemming B 100 v Baulkham Hills 
G Easy C 129 v Auburn 
P Rayner D 119 v Holroyd 
 
 

   

1995-96 
A Kelleher 1st 115 v  Auburn 
D Stepto 1st 100 v  Epping 
M Wood 3rd   119* v  Bexley 
J Christodoulakis 4th 131 v  Baulkham Hills 
G Brown 4th 140 v  Macquarie Uni 
A Ashe 4th 111 v  Auburn 
A Wood 4th 114 v  Macquarie uni 
P Mogan GC   105* v  Roseville 
    



 

 

1996-97    
M Cook 2nd 125 v Epping 
J Colgan 2nd 102 v Macquarie Uni 
A Wood 2nd 100* v Baulkham Hills 
J Pogonoski 3rd 135* v Bexley 
J Twomey 3rd 120* v Auburn 
C Brown 4th 137 v Baulkham Hills 
T Hall 4th 116* V SES 
B Hood GC 225 V Lindfield 
    
1997-98    
C Granger 3rd 117 Pennant Hills 
S Rogers GC 116 West Pymble Colts 
S Rogers GC 100 Forest Old Boys 
H McDonald GC 101 Forest Old Boys 

 
1998-99    
R McEvilly 1st 106* Roseville 
P Campbell 2nd 104 Lindfield 
G Paul 4th 145 Macquarie Uni 
S Myers U24s 117* Roseville 
    
2000-01    
J Lloyd 1st 116 Pennant Hills 
H McDonald 4th 114 Holroyd 
    
2001-02    
R Huxley 1st 112 Warringah 
A Southcott 2nd 113 Macquarie Uni 
S Stewart 4th 120 Strathfield 
    
2002-03    
H Van Heerdon 2nd 164* Epping 
T Hinton 2nd 104 Lindfield 
J Lloyd 3rd 158 Southern Districts 
J Lloyd 3rd 129 Epping 
B Dibden 4th 102* Auburn 
A Vaughn 4th 101* Auburn 
L Hardy GBR 111* Kirribilli 
B Habgood 
 

GBR 101 Old Ignatians 

2003-04    
G Sundstrom 2nd 118 Roseville 
R McEvilly 2nd 106 Macquarie Uni 
B Hood 2nd 102 Pennant Hills 
J Hinton 2nd 100* Burwood 
    
2004-05    
D Naughton 1st 131 Southern Districts 
A Harris 1st 114* Lindfield 



 

 

D Naughton 1st 110 Georges River 
M Punch 2nd 175 Lindfield 
A Southcott 2nd 124* Lindfield 
C McKay 2nd 113 Georges River 
A Southcott 3rd 102* Southern Districts 
I Davidson GB 134* North Shore CC 
S Lees GB 107 West Pymble 
    
2005-06    
D Naughton 1st 144 Burwood 
A Maxwell 3rd 167 South Sydney 
K Clarke 4th 117 Roseville 
B Hood 4th 102* Georges River 
    
2006-07    
D Naughton 1st 100* Georges River 
C McKay 2nd 114* Georges River 
C Granger 3rd 144 South Sydney 
K Clarke 4th 120 Southern Districts 
G Scott 4th 103* Southern Districts 
D Webb TCC 139* Lindfield 
    
2007-08    
P Cross 1st 107 Macquarie Uni 
I Skinner 2nd  104 Auburn 
C McKay 2nd  100* South Sydney 
M Warren 3rd 124 Georges River 
A Harley 4th 138 Epping 
S Iyer 4th 102* Pennant Hills 
N Papastamatis TCC 103 Pennant Hills 
    
2008-09    
P Cross 1st 202* Macquarie Uni 
I Phelps 3rd 118 Warringah 
L O’Connor 3rd 102* Warringah 
B Hood 4th 150* Roseville 
O Fisher 4th 116 Lindfield 
S Iyer TCC 101* Roseville 
I Phelps TCC 101 Burwood 
 
 

   

2009-10    
B Arnall 1st 126* Southern Districts 
G Smith 1st 114 South Sydney 
J Camarsh 1st 113 South Sydney 
S Mantarro 4th 118 Burwood 
B Dempsey 4th 103* Lindfield 
    
2010-11    
R Gallichan 1st 147 Epping 



 

 

R Gallichan 1st 119 Pennant Hills 
R Gallichan 1st 102* Roseville 
P Gallichan 1st 101* South Sydney 
D Naughton 1st 100 Macquarie Uni 
D Naughton 2nd 100 Southern Districts 
    
 
 
 
2011-12 

   

R Gallichan 1st 119 Burwood 
R Gallichan 1st 110* NW Sydney 
J Scarcella 2nd 100* Warringah 
G Sundstrom 3rd 144 Macquarie Uni 
B Arnall 4th 139 Epping 
A Maxwell 4th 120 Epping 
P Ritchie 4th 100* Pennant Hills 
L Mead TCC 101 Macquarie Uni 
    
2012-13    
D Naughton 1st 162* Strathfield 
P Gallichan 1st 106* Burwood 
P Gallichan 1st 100* Roseville 
J Rixon U24s 109 Auburn 

 
2013-14    
D Naughton 1st 100* Burwood 
C Eve 1st 100* Macquarie Uni 
M Fanning TCC 110 Lindfield 
D Webb TCC 105 NWS 
M Rogers TCC 104* Lindfield 

 
2014-15    
D Naughton 1st 116* Lindfield 
M Roberts 2nd 123 Roseville 
A Cornelius 3rd 151* NW Sydney 
N Kelland 3rd 102 Mt Pritchard-Sthn Dist 
 
2015-16 

   

C King 2nd 108* Pennant Hills 
C King 2nd 126* Auburn 
 
2016-17 

   

D Naughton 1st 105* Warringah 
C King 2nd 101* Warringah 

 
2017-18    
Z Malik 1st 107* NW Sydney 
Z Malik U24s 100 Roseville 
Z Malik U24s 107 Pennant Hills 



 

 

T Bristow 2nd  104 Roseville 
S Matheson 
 
2018-19 
D Naughton  
F Boys  
F Boys 
 
 

4th  
 
 

1st  

1st  
24s 

 

119 
 
 

110 
102 
100 

(Same weekend) 

Balmain South Sydney 
 
 
Roseville 
Epping 
Epping 
 
 
 

TROPHIES 
 

CLUBMAN AWARD 
 

1966-67 J Goff  1990-91 M Mitchell & J Lloyd 
1967-68 J Goff & P Wilson  1991-92 I Fairall 
1968-69 No award  1992-93 B Scott 
1969-70 T Cunningham  1993-94 J Hill 
1970-71 R Rickey  1994-95 J Hayes & J Lloyd 
1971-72 T Beattie  1995-96 J Lloyd 
1972-73 H Kallas & M Thomas  1996-97 I Green 
1973-74 R Rickey  1997-98 J Hayes 
1974-75 H Kallas  1998-99 J Lloyd & R Weber 
1975-76 A Harris  1999-00 N/A 
1976-77 A Harris  2000-01 B Hood 
1977-78 B Scott  2001-02 S Flynn & C Robertson 
1978-79 R Blakeney  2002-03 M Mackenzie 
1979-80 A Kelleher  2003-04 C Whitney 
1980-81 A Harris & G Schaper  2004-05 S Myers 
1981-82 M Mitchell  2005-06 G Sundstrom 
1982-83 M Metzler  2006-07 G Boyle 
1983-84 M Hallman & M Scully  2007-08 G Boyle 
1984-85 P Bullock & M Scully  2008-09 T Ryan 
1985-86 J Hill  2009-10 T Ryan 
1986-87 D Treweek & J McCormick  2010-11 G Sundstrom 
1987-88 K Best  2011-12 B Dempsey 
1988-89 M Mitchell & P Watkins  2012-13 S Crayn 
1989-90 K Best & P Watkins  2013-14 ? 
   2014-15 ? 
   2015-16 Jarrod Rixon 
   2016-17 Ben Preece 
   2017-18 

2018-19 
2021-22 

Alec Cornelius 
Alec Cornelius  
Charlie Hipkin 

     
     
     



 

 

     
     
     
     
     

THE CLUB CRICKETER AWARD 
 
1978-79 K Best 
1979-80 G O’Shea 
1980-81 F Paterson 
1981-82 K Best 
1982-83 J Pym 
1983-84 K Best 
1984-85 J Pym 
1985-86 B Scott, L Arambewela 
1986-87 D McLean 
1987-88 L Arambewela 
1988-89 M Mitchell, D Stepto 
1989-90 K Best 
1990-91 R McEvilly 
1991-92 S Roberts 
1992-93 A McLean, D McLean 
1993-94 A Kelleher 
1994-95 I Green 
1995-96 A Kelleher 
1996-97 S Sloane 
1997-98 C Wiseman 
1998-99 P Campbell 
1999-2000 S Myers 
2000-01 D Grant 
2001-02 D Naughton 
2002-03 J Lloyd, P. Cruden, S. Lees 
2003-04 S Dunn 
2004-05 D Naughton 
2005-06 J Bates 
2006-07 S Hunter 
2007-08 P Cross 
2008-09 P Cross, J Gayleard 
2009-10 G Smith 
2010-11 N Absalom, P Gallichan 
2011-12 T Holt 
2012-13 J Camarsh 
2013-14 ? 
2014-15 ? 
2015-16 ? 
2016-17 Damian Naughton 
2017-18 
2018-19 

Liam O’Hare 
Joe Scarcella  



 

 

2019-20 Ben Candfield 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
 
 



 

 

THE HIDDILSTON MEMORIAL SHIELD 
1985-86 B Bennett 2002-03 S Dunn 
1986-87 A McCormick 2003-04 M Scott 
1987-88 L Taylor 2004-05 S Willoughby 
1988-89 S Heher 2005-06 L Higgins 
1989-90 D Cook 2006-07 M Dean 
1990-91 B Hood 2007-08 F McKenna 
1991-92 B Hood 2008-09 J Musgrave 
1992-97 Not awarded 2009-10 C Spratt 
1997-98 C. McKay 2010-11 L Borg 
1998-99 M. Eggert 2011-12 A Sidhu 
1999-2000 T.McDonald 2012-13 M Crayn 
2000-01 M Mackenzie 2013-14 ? 
2001-02 T McDonald 2014-15 

2015-16 
2016-17 
2017-18 
2018-19 

? 
? 
? 
? 
L Maxwell  

 
PLAYERS’ PLAYER AWARD 
2001-02 S Myers 
2003-03 P Cruden 
2003-04 S Dunn 
2004-05 D Naughton 
2005-06 T Holt 
2006-07 B Scott 
2007-08 P Cross 
2008-09 B Scott, J Gayleard 
2009-10 A Dodds 
2010-11 N Absalom 
2011-12 T Holt 
2012-19 Not awarded 
 
SHIRES AWARDS 
2004-05 JF Dettmann Legend of Shires Cricket Inductee 
2004-05 D Naughton 1st Grade Captain of the Season 
2004-05 D Naughton Frank Gray Player of the Season 
2005-06 JB Hollander Legend of Shires Cricket Inductee 
2005-06 T Holt 1st Grade Player of the Season (joint) 
2006-07 B Scott Legend of Shires Cricket Inductee 
2006-07 D Naughton Frank Gray Player of the Season 
2006-07 D Naughton Player of the Frank Gray Final 
2009-10 RM Metzler Legend of Shires Cricket Inductee 



 

 

2009-10 G Sundstrom 3rd Grade Captain of the Season 
2010-11 B Dempsey 4th Grade Captain of the Season 
2011-12 R Gallichan Player of the 1st Grade Final 
2011-12 B Dempsey 4th Grade Captain of the Season 
2019-20 D Naughton 1st Grade Captain of the Season  
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
CUMULATIVE STATISTICS AS AT 2018/19** 
 
 

 NAME INN NO RUNS WKT
S 

RUNS W
K 

 S
T 

 CT 

N Absalom 53 26 207 151 2030     24 
H Ahmed 4 0 22 1 44     2 
A Alla 4 1 47 1 12     0 
A Allan 7 4 132 7 224     1 
S Allen 11 2 51 4 251      
R Aman 31 1 556 25 504     16 
D Amin 9 1 58 4 178     0 
J Anders 10 4 70 6 263     5 
P Anderson 9 2 38 16 365     1 
J Anstey 10 0 216 0 0     6 
M Arkinstall 17 1 219 0 0     8 
JD Armstrong 7 0 89 3 203     0 
T Armstrong 19 3 441 1 49     12 
B Arnall 35 5 749 0 0     21 
S Arudpragasm 28 7 117 38 1097     2 
M Atkinson 

7 1 106 0 0 10 
w
k 2 

s
t 0 

H Bachmann 6 0 126 0 0     0 
J Bachmann 25 0 333 26 581     2 

P Backhouse 43 3 523 90 1401 2 
w
k  

 
9 

C Baillie 0 0 0 0 18     0 
S Baker 8 2 26 4 126     2 
J Baker 2 0 30 3 46     1 
P Bakker 5 1 16 5 181     3 
F Barbeler 26 2 337 4 151     5 



 

 

J Barker 
85 12 582 11 359 4 

w
k  

 
19 

A Barnes 16 2 103 11 121     5 
F Barrett* 1 0 3 1 7     0 

S Barrett 26 1 364 31 713 2 
w
k  

 
6 

J Barry 20 0 433 13 358     2 

M Barry 32 10 235 47 1119  
 

1 
s
t 18 

A Barton 1 0 18 1 21     2 
S Basavegowda 17 5 139 24 450     3 
J Bates 49 8 902 118 1808     15 
T Bayliss 46 2 602 1 142     6 
B Beaston 9 2 43 12 229     5 
LJ Beattie 6 2 57 7 159     1 
M Bedsen 5 0 68       0 
I Bellamy 2 1 24 0 70     0 
T Berry 2 0 40 1 42     0 
M Bertrand 14 1 122 4 73     3 
C Bezer 136 48 717 343 5110     45 
P Blood 63 3 875 2 56     18 

R Blood 58 2 965 6 39 1 
w
k  

 
18 

L Borg 2 0 9 6 59     0 
D Boulter 10 1 98 10 167     2 
S Bourne 15 1 95 1 72     0 
G Boyle 

166 8 2139 42 1062 5 
w
k  

 
51 

F Boys 11 0 321 12 266     8 
A Bradshaw 15 1 328 6 246     2 

A Bray 101 9 965 46 1550 13 
w
k 4 

s
t 26 

T Bremner 7 1 91 3 33     2 

P Brett 161 16 2851 0 1 99 
w
k 3 

s
t 38 

T Bristow 18 7 517 24 451     4 
B Brown 5 1 90 0 0     3 
B Broyd 17 3 219 21 423     11 
D Bullock 10 0 68 0 12     1 
M Burke 

3 0 65 0 0 5 
w
k  

 
0 

T Burn 1 0 14 2 24     1 
A Burns 2 0 51 0 0     0 
B Bye 3 0 40 3 84     1 
T Byrne 11 1 128 10 396     5 

T Cachalia 22 1 311 1 29 5 
w
k 1 

s
t 6 

B Caddey 1 0 4 0 0 1 
w
k 1 

s
t 0 

W Callinan 1 0 61 0 20     0 
C Camarsh 51 2 955 107 1798     19 
J Camarsh 164 17 2606 216 4322     63 
N Campbell 2 1 116 0 0     0 
S Campbell* 76 10 944 43 833     18 
J Canlas 3 0 3 0 0     0 
S Carnaffan 16 0 288 0 31     8 



 

 

M Chase 2 1 5 0 10     1 
A Chauhan 7 0 86 13 155     1 
M Chauhan 12 2 139 19 253     0 
J Cheok 2 1 1 0 0     0 
B Chiarella 13 0 166 17 268     3 
A Clarke 1 0 7 0 0     0 

J Clarke 67 19 703 132 2003 2 
w
k  

 
25 

K Clarke 
65 3 1140 3 184 11 

w
k 2 

s
t 9 

W Collins 19 2 344 3 97 1 
w
k  

 
4 

A Cornelius 89 36 843 168 3163     37 
G Cornelius 96 6 1643 49 947     56 
T Cottee-Warner 49 7 412 15 511     16 

A Cowell 13 1 175 6 120 1 
w
k 2 

s
t 3 

S Cox 92 15 935 128 2340     40 
B Craig 18 1 207 15 342     4 
C Cramer 14 5 134 1 195     0 

K Crayn 75 11 564 75 1990 1 
w
k  

 
20 

M
W Crayn 8 1 76   2 

w
k  

 
0 

S Crayn 14 2 346 4 165     3 
M Cross 24 7 387 7 149     3 
P Cross 

30 2 1270 3 91 2 
w
k  

 
15 

P Cruden 14 1 259 50 657     6 
A Cubbage 2 0 4 0 6     2 
B Curran 13 5 61 17 458     7 
J Curtin 9 1 83 13 205     4 
O Dadge 6 1 43 6 166     1 

W 
Daly 

38 1 417 26 678 5 
w
k  

 
10 

B Dash 11 4 268 0 0     2 
I Davidson 169 21 3103 123 2627     61 
S Davies 1 0 0 2 38     1 
T Davies 1 0 14 0 0     0 
T Davoren 3 1 66 1 16     0 
H De Jong 3 1 11 2 51     0 
M Dean 33 5 414 0 79     13 
H Dekoning 1 0 30 1 14     1 
D Delaney 14 2 193 30 451     9 
B Dempsey 86 8 1473 6 174     44 
J Dempsey 36 3 432 47 1046     14 
R Devine 25 5 308 25 556     7 
S Devineni 9 1 27 3 93     0 
V Dharman 6 1 29 10 287     2 
B Dibden 18 1 439 8 150     2 
K Dindayal 144 15 1611 144 2618     33 
R Dixon 9 1 66       0 
J Dobbler 7 2 137 8 171     2 
A Dodds 148 36 1998 293 4782     24 

M Dodds 31 5 450 0 6 68 
w
k 3 

s
t 4 



 

 

M Doherty 91 3 896 13 202     16 
N Donegan 9 1 152 4 112     5 
M Donegen 9 4 239 14 215     3 
T Dosen 6 1 10 0 5     1 
A Douglass 24 6 255 0 25     3 
A Dowey 63 10 719 28 638     26 
S Dunn 109 18 1060 145 3474     27 
M Dwyer 9 3 94 11 218     4 
M Edwards 1 0 25 0 0     0 
N Edwards 2 1 1 4 38     0 
S Edwards 1 0 0 0 23     0 
M Eggert 55 2 489 55 1642     10 
A Ellison 1 0 2 0 0     0 
J Ephraums 19 2 256 8 271     5 
C Evans 1 0 32 1 16     0 
C Eve 35 5 667 49 746     9 
C Ewen 7 0 26        
D Fagan 29 3 359       8 
C Fahey 1 0 5 3 58     0 
M Fahey 1 1 0 0 0     1 
S Fanning 7 1 208 3 141     0 
H Farquharson 7 1 53 4 155     4 
B Favell 4 0 108 0 0     0 

B Fillingham 18 3 202 0 0 23 
w
k 2 

s
t 0 

M Fini 27 4 401 11 324 2 
w
k  

 
6 

B Finnigan 20 2 119 1 13     3 
O Fisher 150 4 2591 65 1562     44 
W Fitzgerald 11 1 228 5 176     0 
L Flannigan 7 0 73 5 152     3 
R Fletcher 38 3 623 0 13     10 

S Flynn 92 15 933 10 130 93 
w
k 20 

s
t 0 

C Fogarty 14 4 67 22 352     2 
S Forbes 2 0 22 1 49     1 
O Forde 11 0 56 8 248     1 
C Forrest 15 1 187 7 315     5 
M Forster 23 4 529 9 209     9 

P Francis 10 0 108 2 40 7 
w
k  

 
8 

C Frankish 66 19 356 75 1884     19 
I Frankish 11 0 76 7 148     3 
M Fredericks 5 1 27 4 217     0 
A French 2 0 10 7 156     0 
D French* 

45 8 706 0 0 29 
w
k 5 

s
t 7 

F French 1 0 36 0 0     0 
B Fuller 

24 3 221 0 7 13 
w
k  

 
7 

H Fullerton 5 2 34 4 87     1 
J Gale 1 0 2 0 0     0 

EJ Galek 35 6 776       13 
P Gallichan 

39 10 1107 8 279 3 
w
k  

 
12 

R Gallichan 36 6 1181 58 1160     26 



 

 

P Gardner 9 1 32 6 220     1 
S Garry 

8 2 81 0 16 10 
w
k 1 

s
t 0 

J Gayleard 100 8 1482 38 638     47 
A Gerrand 56 7 69 19 1024     10 
N Gerrand 1 0 0 0 0     0 
J Gibson 6 2 122 10 128     3 
A Gill 3 3 19 5 47     0 
A Gill 12 1 283 0 30     2 
D Gill 4 2 13 3 87     1 

TD Gilmour 6 0 3 5 86     0 
N Gleeson 9 0 30 6 160     3 
A Gluck 2 0 18 1 34     0 
G Gomes 4 1 23 3 46     6 
A Gordon 19 2 327 1 31     1 
A Gowthorp 6 0 81 1 37     1 
C Granger 

210 22 4111 14 418 1 
w
k  

 
51 

B Greaves 22 4 236 51 462     5 
S Greaves 42 5 370 24 389     4 
D Gribben 29 3 258 2 29     9 
P Guneratnam 9 0 111 0 21     0 
B Habgood 

37 1 857 10 318 9 
w
k  

 
9 

S Halfacre 8 0 66 11 227     0 
W Hall 6 0 101 7 193     0 
B Hancock 1 0 19 1 28     0 
L Handford 1 0 0 2 32     0 
L Hardy 52 4 1005 45 1018     14 
A Harley 

28 1 413 0 87 13 
w
k 1 

s
t 4 

A Harper 15 1 152 17 449     3 

JD Harpham 81 2 1359 2 46 15 
w
k  

 
13 

JN Harpham 98 21 905 17 391 114 
w
k 7 

s
t 9 

A Harris 48 3 1339 1 16     14 
B Harrison-Smith 4 1 31 0 17     2 

B Harvey 8 0 71 7 211 1 
w
k 1 

s
t 1 

B Haughton 8 3 48 0 33     0 
A Hawkins 16 0 64 0 0     1 
D Haylen 23 1 183 18 481     4 
R Hearne 3 0 29 2 120     2 
S Herden 12 2 239 11 163     0 
L Higgins 60 4 597 85 1754     16 

R Higgins 67 6 1172 1 52 1 
w
k  

 
30 

J Hinton 86 10 1752 1 22     24 
T Hinton 45 1 676 5 163     10 

C Hipkin 99 18 868 156 3165 2 
w
k  

 
48 

C Hoffman 2 1 28 3 49     0 
Be Holland 1 0 31 0 0     1 
Br Holland 27 0 493 6 188     1 
M Holmes 21 2 121 2 143     1 



 

 

P Holmes 2 0 58 0 24     2 
B Holt 2 0 64       2 
D Holt 3 0 2 2 44     0 
P Holt 10 3 17 6 115     0 
T Holt 180 37 2642 413 7033     92 

B Hood 278 33 5624 7 191 18 
w
k 2 

s
t 82 

C Hoskins 33 1 322 2 77     4 

L Hume 40 4 514   44 
w
k 16 

s
t 1 

B Hunt 10 1 121 5 214     6 
S Hunter 39 6 584 102 1643     15 
A Hurley 5 1 147 4 93     0 
R Huxley 60 3 1381 37 880     18 
G Imhoff 68 27 308 129 2856     9 
F Iqbal 1 0 24 0 0     0 
S Isherwood 1 0 57 0 0     0 
R Islam 42 23 77 114 1687     9 
S Iyer 

4 2 245 0 0 2 
w
k  

 
0 

A James 1 0 10 0 7     0 
A Jenkins 32 3 359 64 909     7 
D Johnson 1 0 53 1 38     0 
N Johnston 

13 3 164 0 0 6 
w
k 4 

s
t 0 

J Joseph 
1 0 5 0 0 1 

w
k 2 

s
t 0 

J Kadwa 39 1 576 40 929     3 
K Kapur 4 1 18 2 67     0 
S Karim 16 2 86 23 390     4 
P Keall 5 0 57 0 0     0 
W Keall 27 1 243 5 208     5 

N Kelland 28 0 563 9 275 11 
w
k 3 

s
t 5 

P Kelland 7 0 57 2 108     1 
M Keevers 2 0 4 0 6     1 
L Kelleher 10 3 50 0 0     1 
D Kendrick 3 0 28 2 37     0 
I Kensell 27 0 737 12 373     7 

JJ Kiely 10 0 103 0 34     3 
C King 44 10 695 14 362     8 
G King 6 0 71 0 0     1 
S King 17 5 228 8 282     3 
A Knapp 47 6 799 3 163     12 
T Knapp 10 0 81 11 176     8 

D Knock 29 4 311 2 24 1 
w
k  

 
2 

S Komman 40 1 266 0 21 7 
w
k  

 
6 

M Koureas 0 0 0 2 53     0 
D Kraus 2 0 27 0 26     0 
A Krishnan 15 4 169 17 482     8 
A Krishnasway 86 4 1576 0 22     25 
E Kuchey 9 3 64 9 185     3 
S Kumar 1 0 8 0 0     0 
P Langtry 75 31 517 89 1970     28 



 

 

O Lee-Young 17 2 279 1 54     5 
A Lees 6 1 143 0 0     0 
E Lees 3 0 63 3 123     1 
J Lees 7 0 79 4 156     1 
S Lees 27 3 766 52 900     10 
W Lewis 16 7 57 36 758     4 
A Lidbury 9 0 186 3 48     3 
C Lim 1 0 9 0 0     0 
J Lloyd 

375 24 7225 13 382 19 
w
k 1 

s
t 121 

J Luke 61 15 442 47 1200     16 
J Lyons 21 4 293 0 65     5 
H MacDonald 204 14 2525 184 2169     18 
T Mackay 2 1 103 2 39     0 
M Mackenzie 144 14 3052 169 3620     40 
M Magee 5 1 76 4 120     4 
G Maguire 5 0 66 4 121     1 
A Malik 10 5 49 5 133     2 
Z Malik 19 1 497 34 405     9 
P Mallyon 121 58 584 305 5306     22 
M Mamo 6 0 44 1 43     1 
R Manchester 30 10 100 69 1302     1 

TC Mandleberg 44 6 805 5 210     15 
D Manescu 5 3 9 1 4     3 
P Manoharan 7 4 39 9 251      

S Mantarro 66 4 1284 0 0 6 
w
k 1 

s
t 21 

J Marsh 1 0 10 0 0     0 
C Martin 29 9 90 32 832     1 
T Marshall 5 0 77 0 0     1 
P Manoharan 5 3 35 3 157     0 
S Matheson 27 3 478 1 51     9 

A Maxwell 129 13 2894 21 389 82 
w
k 14 

s
t 43 

C McCraith 1 0 11 0 0     0 
T McDonald 104 22 1144 107 2302     30 
A McDonnell 3 0 17 0 0     1 
N McDonnell 13 1 197 0 0     2 
S McDowell 12 0 43 0 11     3 

L McElduff 7 0 92 0 0 3 
w
k  

 
2 

R McElduff 19 3 409 1 68     2 
S McElduff 1 0 15 0 0     1 
R McEvilly* 12 0 364 1 52     4 

R McFadyen 35 7 295 1 52 15 
w
k  

 
4 

J McGrath 2 0 1 0 18     1 
C McKay 228 20 4296 19 528     61 
F McKenna 0 0 0 3 10     1 
N McLeod 6 0 241 12 250     0 

DF McVey 11 2 27 8 209      

L Mead 6 0 185 0 0 1 
w
k  

 
1 

P Mees 38 6 356 0 0 47 
w
k 10 

s
t 2 

A Meggarity 8 1 16 8 231     0 



 

 

L Miletic 4 0 6 0 19     1 
B Millar 18 0 200 28 561     5 
B Miller 3 0 10 0 0     3 
C Miller 29 2 310 16 676     10 
G Minhas 8 2 29 4 110     1 
I Minhas 8 0 37 9 249     1 
J Molloy 18 5 35 43 765     2 
S Moore 21 3 175 24 521     9 

A Morris 41 6 302 1 36 16 
w
k 4 

 
4 

C Morris 7 0 21 0 14     3 
P Morrow 

15 2 218 2 11 8 
w
k 2 

s
t 0 

A Mortimer 21 2 135 32 603     7 
E Mudaliar-Bek 8  76 0 17     1 
C Myers 21 1 524 9 233     12 
S Myers 179 17 2998 183 4092     58 
N Mytkowski 52 3 872 52 912     18 
D Nagy-Horty 6 1 68 8 255     1 
D Naughton 303 35 7916 129 2226     190 

T Naughton 66 19 611 0 0 102 
w
k 10 

s
t 7 

JT Needham 24 1 447 2 30 14 
w
k 3 

s
t 1 

J Nelson 3 2 52 3 50     0 
P Nirmalendran 78 12 967 95 1882     25 
A Noonan 17 0 197 0 0     3 
C Oakley 7 1 51 0 28     2 
P O’Byrne 27 3 291 36 972     16 
L O’Connor 31 4 501 0 51     8 

P O’Farrell 16 2 120 1 24 9 
w
k 1 

s
t 0 

S O’Farrell 15 0 86 4 71     0 

L O’Hare 96 18 916 194 3292 5 
w
k  

 
39 

T O’Malley-Jones 7 3 62 3 21     1 
P O’Neill 2 0 21 0 0     0 
N Ogden 10 1 108 18 317     6 
A Ostowari 12 3 41 8 295     1 
N Papastamatis 29 5 557 14 504     10 
P Parbury 3 0 34 1 39     2 
R Patel 25 1 358 5 266     4 
U Patel 5 1 12 1 90     0 
J Pattanayak 11 1 337 12 269     4 
M Paul 8 2 64 3 211     1 
J Peddada 29 4 166 0 22     7 
T Penman 1 1 65 0 0     0 
S Perry 12 0 177 0 28     3 

D Peter 22 3 351 2 126 1 
w
k  

 
6 

E Petrie 3 0 14 0 0     1 
I Phelps 82 6 1507 9 167     35 
J Phillips 1 0 14 3 30     0 
C Pike 16 5 65 16 356     9 

JP Pipolo 9 1 98   1 
w
k 1 

s
t 3 



 

 

D Plank 7 1 10 7 232     1 
J Plummer 10 0 148       1 
B Poder 58 12 279 56 1524     2 
D Poder 11 2 224 7 139     4 
M Potts 63 5 976 49 1218     13 
A Power 3 1 126 3 88     0 
K Pradeep 9 1 107 14 291     1 
B Preece 13 1 77 11 195     0 
C Preston 47 13 253 79 1596     14 
B Priest 7 1 144 0 22     0 
M Punch 9 0 244 12 142     3 
L Putnam-Gray 50 14 527 104 2032     34 
R Pym (Jnr) 20 7 192 22 661     3 
T Pym 11 1 165 0 14     2 

R Quail 14 4 68   6 
w
k 4 

s
t 0 

C Rae 4 0 28 2 67     0 
Z Rae 5 0 71 5 113     1 

S Rahmany 9 0 151 2 25 2 
w
k  

 
0 

SP Rangarajan 8 0 278 9 179     0 
R Ravi 13 0 354 15 277     9 
P Rayner 30 3 602 42 975     7 

GP Read 6 0 132 7 140     1 
CG Reed 11 1 73 4 298     2 
S Rickard 15 2 214 7 261     3 
J Rigon 18 1 324 0 27     7 
N Rindani 6 1 88 0 0     0 
P Ritchie 27 4 591 19 442     9 
J Rixon 

107 7 1849 11 308 34 
w
k 2 

s
t 28 

M Rixon 52 5 672 8 218     19 

M Roberts 3 0 187   3 
w
k 1 

s
t 0 

A Robertson 12 5 83 18 305     9 
C Robertson 142 49 843 234 5543     27 
M Robinson 20 2 150 14 674     5 
M Rogers 12 2 319       4 

M Rogers 10 1 34   5 
w
k 2 

s
t 1 

S Rogers 72 4 899 21 529     5 
S Rowe 53 7 849 94 1701     21 
H Roxburgh 3 0 41 0 0     0 
J Ryan 

11 5 35 0 0 1 
w
k  

 
0 

N Sabine 44 10 283 74 1696     10 
J Salmond 3 1 14 1 39     0 
Y Samant 16 0 204 13 226     2 
G Sansom-Sherwill 20 4 58 3 76     1 
I Sarfraz 9 4 24 42 382     3 
J Sargeant 27 6 130 42 953     10 

W Savage 6 1 25   1 
w
k 1 

s
t 3 

M Sawyer 2 0 41 0 11     1 
J Scarcella 121 17 1311 325 5255     28 
T Scarfe 1 0 51 0 40     1 



 

 

M Schaafsma 153 10 1962 7 110     22 
G Schaper* 13 2 123 0 0     2 
B Scott 465 168 3284 1116 21528     130 

G 
Scott 

19 3 419 0 0 4 
w
k 1 

s
t 8 

LA Scott 7 0 92 6 86     4 
M Scott 16 2 351 5 195     6 

E 
Scrivens 

69 4 894 3 121 7 
w
k 3 

s
t 13 

R Seymour 28 3 180 15 456     5 
J Seymour 1 0 27 2 37     0 
D Shah 6 3 17 4 169     3 
J Shah 21 1 98 4 80     2 
S Shaikh 36 4 208 37 707     10 
Y Sharif 2 0 44 1 24     0 
N Sharma 7 1 118 0 0     1 

J Sharp 141 3 2021 20 534 2 
w
k 2 

s
t 19 

N 
Sharples 

47 7 775 19 494 8 
w
k 6 

s
t 16 

H Shaw 66 9 358 71 1422     5 
J Shaw 18 9 50 22 440     1 
J Shaw 53 13 205 38 1035     10 
R Shearer 1 0 8 0 0     1 
R Sheather 12 0 68 0 0     1 
T Sherrah 29 1 269 18 458     9 
J Shingler 7 2 117 11 214     0 
D Shotten 1 0 5 1 43     0 
Al Sidhu 28 12 119 59 1293     4 
S Sidhu 20 1 407 3 23     8 
A Sierakowski 1 0 23 0 0     0 
D Simmons 6 0 3 3 58     1 

P Sinclair 66 13 721 94 1414 1 
w
k  

 
21 

H Singh 1 0 0 3 32     1 
J Singh 8 2 70 13 285     5 
A Sirrpi 43 1 521 11 327     4 
I Skinner 21 0 503 37 588     7 
R Skinner 29 2 375 4 85     11 
K Slade 22 5 152 58 1209     7 
P Slater 31 3 376 19 329     10 
S Sloane 2 0 24 1 27     0 
C Slocombe 1 0 0 0 0     0 
A Smith 4 0 76 4 91     1 
Ad Smith 5 0 71 2 43     1 
G Smith 

104 9 2065 0 10 19 
w
k 3 

s
t 20 

M Smith 36 11 363 0 0 29 
w
k 16 

s
t 0 

A Southcott 199 17 4189 48 897     63 
S Spencer 25 7 272 60 1228     5 

A Srivastava 6 0 69 0 97 1 
w
k  

 
 

C Spratt 2 0 18 0 0     0 
G Spratt* 1 0 27 0 0     0 



 

 

P Spruce 
48 4 628 0 19 21 

w
k 1 

s
t 11 

J Standing 26 3 407 30 718     8 
S Stewart 86 14 1147 93 2265     20 
M Stone 47 6 947 1 64     26 
T Stone 17 1 257 25 371     6 
W Story 4 1 27 0 0     0 

I Strauss 25 0 495   7 
w
k  

 
6 

H Stibbard  11 1 188 0 52     8 
S Stuart 2 0 17 0 0     1 

J Studds 17 2 360 0 27 5 
w
k 1 

s
t 3 

R Su 25 2 200 4 156     11 
S Sundar 2 0 35 0 23     0 

G Sundstrom 189 20 3375 91 1359 1 
w
k 1 

s
t 78 

B Sykes 15 1 156 1 31     3 
A Szabo* 2 0 38 0 0     0 
T Tait 24 9 256 36 816     11 

H Tamta 7 0 35   5 
w
k  

 
1 

A Tariq 6 1 18 14 256     1 
O Tatham 11 2 15 0 30     1 

D Taylor 44 5 575 0 0 30 
w
k 8 

s
t 0 

T Terrell 1 0 0 0 0     0 
P Thakur 54 6 605 39 680     9 
D Thompson* 1 0 74 0 0     0 
M Thomson 2 0 12 3 64     0 
S Tippireddy 

25 2 431 6 124 3 
w
k 2 

s
t 7 

B Tompsett 110 9 1339 14 370 3 
w
k  

 
45 

P Tompsett 80 7 1056 36 1264     20 
B Tolj 17 6 36 33 58     1 
D Toms 

26 0 485 3 44 6 
w
k  

 
6 

P Tran 11 3 96 20 305     4 
N Trumbull 45 5 444 82 1828     12 
M Tunwell 8 0 59 0 0     2 
M Turner 27 1 314 20 771     0 
H Twomey 18 0 454 2 78     3 
J Twomey* 52 1 956 2 34     22 
M Tzikas* 41 11 437 81 1241     12 
J Unwin 17 2 225 13 373     2 
H Van Ede 7 1 22 1 37     1 
H Van Heerden 16 2 526 1 11     1 
E Van Schalkwuk 52 10 174 87 1969     7 
M Varidel 4 0 53 3 114     0 
A Varkey 34 1 626 1 65     2 
S Varkey 45 5 541 1 159     9 
A Vaughan 26 6 407 21 790     2 
J Verco 

22 3 86 0 0 11 
w
k 2 

s
t 2 



 

 

B Vo 
10 2 36 0 0 7 

w
k 2 

s
t 0 

B Walsh 3 0 28        
J Warn 15 7 34 15 399     4 
M Warren 35 1 761 0 0     4 
A Watkins 13 0 170 12 335     2 
J Watts 23 4 97 5 213     5 

N Way 60 11 770 4 64 13 
w
k  

 
10 

D Webb 49 5 1377 3 45     33 
J Webb 1 0 0 0 0     0 
M Westacott 10 0 105 4 143     2 
S White 6 0 85 3 93     1 
C Whitney 42 10 686 81 1457     18 
G Wiblin 2 1 10 0 73     0 
B Wickramaratna 2 0 59 0 0     0 
D Wiffin 5 0 47 0 45     6 
A Williams 4 0 111 5 75     1 

M Wilmott 3 0 11 0 0 1 
w
k 1 

s
t 0 

S Willoughby 
146 12 1767 3 45 90 

w
k 18 

s
t 18 

T Willoughby 77 25 360 53 1305 6 
w
k 1 

s
t 24 

C Wing 34 3 902       10 
J Woodhams 12 7 47 12 354     3 
B Wright 74 4 1411 3 154     20 
M Wright 2 1 60 1 9     0 

R Wright 1 1 0 0 10 2 
w
k  

 
0 

Y You 6 0 46 0 49     0 
O Young 36 5 502 0 0     12 

 
 
* Statistics missing from previous spell(s) at the club prior to 2018/19. 
**  Statistics updated as to the end of the 2019/20 season but will be updated with the 

2023 Annual Report 
  
 
 
 


